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The results of Group Sense (International) Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in
the financial year of 2011-2012 were not satisfactory. The
Group recorded total revenues of HK$478,708,620 in the
financial year of 2011-2012, around 23% lower than those of
HK$622,854,894 in the last year. The Group recorded a loss
after tax of HK$76,917,712 in this financial year, around 142%
more than those of HK$31,777,948 in the last year.

The Group's two main lines of businesses are the electronic
handheld products business and the original design
manufacturing (“ODM") products business. In this financial
year, the electronic handheld products business contributed
approximately 48.4% to the Group’s total revenue. As for the
ODM business, the contribution of this business segment in this
financial year was approximately 51.6% of the Group's total
revenue.

In analyzing the Group’s revenue by geographical areas, Asia
is the Group's key market, including Hong Kong (18.6%) and
other Asian markets (67.2%).

The main reasons for the decrease in revenue and the loss
were: (a) the decrease in businesses and orders, fluctuation in
seasonal orders in low and peak seasons as well as deviation in
monthly production demands led the factory into a loss, which
in turn affected the results of the Group; (b) as the Group
expected, the emergence of integrated consumer electronic
products, the decrease in sales of traditional electronic
dictionaries and shrinkage of traditional electronic dictionaries
markets also led the electronic dictionary business into a loss
and in turn affect the results of the Group.

After crossing a few vyears investment stage, Personal
Communication Products SBU (strategic business unit) has
turned around in the financial year of 2011-2012. It is believed
that the wireless communication products for industrial use and
vertical market would be gradually grown. It is expected that
this would bring positive sign to the Group even though the
profit contribution is not substantial.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

There are three main areas of targets for the future
development of the Group:

(M

Better use of resources, strived to turn around the
factory: for effective use of resources, the Group has
rented out approximately 40% of unused land of the
approximately 100 mu factory premises during this
financial year. The Group also actively streamlined and
vacated the excess area of the self-owned Hong Kong
warehouse and arranged for renting out. It is expected
that this would bring revenue to the Group. To enhance
the purchasing efficiency and foster the partnership with
materials suppliers, the Group has established a central
procurement division by combining purchasing teams of
different SBUs. To flexibly cope with the fluctuation in
seasonal orders in low and peak seasons as well as the
deviation in monthly production demands in the factory,
the Group is planning to outsource certain process. In
addition, the Group is strived to develop the business
of sub-contract manufacturing of touch panel business
by accumulating the relevant experiences with a view
to become one of the major sources of revenue of the
Group and offset the impact of the decrease of orders
and revenue.

BEBRXBIBZBADH
ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

%I BIER RURFTEEER
T 48.4% 51.6% Original Design
Electronic Handheld : : i
Products Manufacturing
Products
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Merge the SBUs, foster the existing business: due to
the expected decrease in sales of traditional electronic
dictionaries and shrinkage of traditional electronic
dictionaries market, the Group decided to better use the
resources and technologies of the electronic dictionary
division by combining the electronic dictionary division
and strategic product division with effect from 1st April,
2012 with a view to facilitate the Group in speeding up
the development of the Japan market. It is believed that
there is still in a period of transition and the electronic
dictionary business will still record a loss for a period
of time. The Group expects that after the period of
the transition, the newly combined Strategic Products
SBU would offer more resources for exploring potential
customers in Japan market and would improve the results
in long run.

Explore China opportunities, seek for new development:
in the past year, one of the Group’'s key development
projects was to continue to establish a base in
Guangdong. Up to date, the Group has already invested
over HK$60 million and expects to be able to move into
the premises in this year-end. In view of the rapid growth
of the electronic publishing and new media businesses
in China, the Group has already established a strategic
partnership with Guangzhou Kingsun Software R&D
Centre Co., Ltd. (“Kingsun”) by transferring part of the
equity interests in Guangdong ZDXT Software Technology
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, to Kingsun.
Kingsun intended to establish a “Digital Publication Base
of National Standard”. It is expected that this will bring
new development path to the Group.
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKETS
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does not
recommend any payment of final dividend (2011: Nil) to the
shareholders for the year ended 31st March 2012.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our shareholders,
customers, suppliers and bankers for their continual support. |
would also like to extend my appreciation to all the staff for
their dedicated work and their contribution throughout the
year.

By order of the Board
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th June, 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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STRATEGIC PRODUCTS

Business Review

The Electronic Dictionary Division has experienced a decline in
sales turnover and profit in the financial year of 2011-2012.
The orders from major markets such as Hong Kong and
Taiwan showed no significant recovery even after launch of
series of new products. The rapid growth of smartphones
with standard operating system platforms that contains
e-dictionary applications affected the demand in traditional
electronic dictionary products. Major efforts have been made
for reviewing the business strategy and for improvement in
operating efficiency with a view of minimizing the loss.

The result of the Original Design Manufacturing Division in
the second half of the financial year of 2011-2012 recorded
a decrease in sales turnover and a negative profit. As the
Japanese economy was still in decline after the natural disaster
in March 2011, the orders from our Japanese customers had
become sluggish and deviated from their forecast. The Division
had responded by focusing on high value-added, higher
profitable vertical markets products business. Nevertheless, the
decrease in order quantity inevitably affected the efficiency
of the factory operation. Sudden drop in the eBook readers
orders in the US market had also affected the inventories level,
resulting in a loss.

Outlook

In view of continuous enhancement on efficiency and
effectiveness of business operation flow and to cope with the
Group's future business development plan, beginning from 1st
April, 2012, a new SP SBU (Strategic Products Strategic Business
Unit) was formed by combining the Electronic Dictionary
Division and Original Design Manufacturing Division. “Learning
Solution Department” is newly formed for developing value-
added products and services in the education segment. SP SBU
is strived to develop new Android-based products and services
for different business sectors and business partners.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

STRATEGIC PRODUCTS (continued)

Outlook (continued)

While the business situation and environment may remain tough
in the financial year of 2012-2013, SP SBU will persistently
pursue its strategy of penetrating the Japan market by
continue enhancing the quality and the service. In addition,
SP SBU will intensify its efforts in achieving the business
recovery and restoring business growth by adopting different
directions. In addition to the conventional ODM (original design
manufacturing) business that we continue developing and
manufacturing the products according to customers’ product
plan, SP SBU has started to develop new product plans to
customers based on our profound knowledge on components
trend and worldwide technology partnership. SP SBU expects
that new products will be launched in Japan market with
customers’ brands and distribution channels.

At the same time, SP SBU will explore new business
opportunities in view of utilizing manufacturing facilities and
help strengthening the competitiveness of the Group.

PERSONAL COMMUNICATION PRODUCTS

Business Review

The sales volume of PCP SBU (Personal Communication
Products Strategic Business Unit) has increased noticeably in
the financial year of 2011-2012 as compared to the financial
year of 2010-2011, due to the increased delivery of POS (Point-
of-Sale) Terminal products and M2M (Machine-to-Machine)
communication products. The business of PCP SBU has turned
around in the financial year of 2011-2012.

PCP SBU focused in developing wireless communication products
business. The results of shifting from the consumer electronics
market to vertical market are seen. PCP SBU mainly develops
wireless communication products for vertical markets, including
POS Terminal products and M2M communication products.
POS Terminal products are a series of wireless communication
terminals specially designed for hospitality, logistic, retail and
other industries. Through non-intermittent communication,
practitioners can complete the jobs efficiently by mastering and
processing the information at any time and at any place. The
corporate operation efficiency would then be enhanced.

EE(BBR)ERA2A 2012 @ FHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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PERSONAL COMMUNICATION PRODUCTS
(continued)

Business Review (continued)

M2M communication products enable the users to master
the real-time and accurate location, movement, status and
other important information through wireless communication
technologies. Corporations are able to manage the assets
efficiently, utilise the apparatus and control the logistics with
a view of utilising the resources effectively.

Outlook

The further advancement of wireless communication
network and technologies enable the widespread of wireless
internet and lower the products costs to a reasonable level.
Wireless communication network brings new applications
and convenience to consumers, enables swift growth and
widespread use of smartphones in the consumer markets, and
this in turn leading to unlimited business opportunities. As for
the vertical markets, wireless internet enables corporations to
interconnect people and things, acquire real-time information
and deploy resources effectively. This enhances the corporate
operation efficiency. More value-added services could be
provided to customers. We believe that the potential of wireless
communication products for vertical markets is great.

In the coming year, PCP SBU would continue developing
wireless communication products for vertical markets and
strive to increase the product competitiveness by improving
the products features, expansibility and reliability as well as
enhancement of service quality. We believe that flexible order
placing, sufficient technical support and full after-sales services
are vital to the success in the vertical markets. In addition, with
the well-established sales channel, goodwill and partnership,
products could be launched to the end users effectively.

Looking forward to the coming years, we are facing challenges
despite the potential in the market. Firstly, in the face of the
uncertainty of global economy, corporations may be closed
down or deducted the expenses, which in turn affect the
products demand. Secondly, competitors impose another
challenge. Severe consumer market competitions may have an
effect on corporations to shift to vertical markets. PCP SBU will
increase its competitiveness for success in the vertical markets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue of the financial year is HK$478,708,620, which is
23% lower than HK$622,854,894 of the previous year. During
the year under review, electronic handheld products business
and ODM business recorded revenue of HK$231,758,030 and
HK$246,950,590 respectively.

Operating loss for the year is HK$72,893,587 (2011:
HK$29,885,895). After charging finance costs of HK$511,201
and other expenses of HK$3,466,592 (2011: finance costs
HK$0 and other expenses HK$1,600,000), loss before tax
is HK$76,871,380 (2011: HK$31,485,895). After taking into
account the taxation, loss for the year is HK$76,917,712 (2011:
HK$31,777,948).

On the statement of financial position side, inventories have
decreased by HK$38,695,303 to HK$77,367,612 and trade
receivables decreased by HK$30,784,351 to HK$59,639,993.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
amounted to HK$138,990,253 which was 15% lower than
HK$163,899,986 of the previous year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

On 31st March, 2012, the bank balances and cash of the Group
(including bank deposits) were HK$138,990,253 in total, which
was HK$24,909,733 or 15% lower than those of twelve months
ago. The Group's bank borrowing is HK$20,000,000 (31st March,
2011: Nil). The Group’s bank borrowing is denominated in Hong
Kong dollars with floating interest rate and short term in nature.

As at 31st March, 2012, the gearing ratio of the Group, defined

as total bank borrowings divided by shareholders’ equities was
5%. The interest expenses is HK$511,201 during the period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March, 2012, the contingent liabilities of the Group
were HK$12,650,200 (2011: HK$4,895,000).

EE(BBR)ERA2A 2012 @ FHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND TREASURY POLICY

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Japanese Yen, United
States dollars or Renminbi. The usual treasury policy of the
Group is to manage significant currency exposure and minimize
currency risk whenever it may have material impact to the
Group. During the twelve months period, the Group does not
engage in any interest rate or currencies speculations.

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

As at 31st March, 2012, the Group has on its payroll 201 (2011:
223) employees in Hong Kong, 1,583 (2011: 2,105) employees
in the People’s Republic of China and 13 (2011: 12) employees
in Japan, representing a decrease of about 10%, a decrease
of about 25% and an increase of about 8% respectively as
compared with prior year. In addition to salary remuneration,
the Group provides various fringe benefits such as annual leave,
medical insurance and provident fund.

At the beginning and in the interim of every financial year, the
Group’s management holds Business Planning Meetings with its
senior staff to review together the Group’s past performance, as
well as to discuss with them the Group’s future strategic plans,
policies and developments. After publication of the Group’s
results announcement, staff communication sessions are held to
keep employees abreast of the Group’s developments and also
to facilitate two-way dialogue between the management and
all level of employees. The management actively communicates
with employees by means of “GSL SMS” through intranet,
staff newsletters and emails to ensure free flow of information
across different staff levels and to promote information and
experience sharing. All staff are encouraged to express their
views and feelings and to propose suggestions on different
aspects. Employee satisfaction surveys are conducted regularly
to help the senior management gauge various concerns of the
staff and formulate appropriate solutions accordingly. A good
promotion system is in place to identify the potential staff and
help employees prepare for their career prospects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS (continued)

The Group has organized a number of in-house training
programmes to continuously develop the capabilities of all levels
of the staff. Moreover, employees are encouraged to take outside
programmes to acquire additional knowledge and upgrade their
skills. Staff may be nominated for attending selected training
schemes with full sponsorship. Employees who are interested in
other unselected courses may still apply for the full or partial
subsidies through the Group’s Education Subsidizing Scheme.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group's concern for the environment begins with its own
operations. The Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong participated
the centralized automatic refuse collection system and lighting
control system. The Group encourages the adoption of recycled
or environmentally responsible materials as well as paper and
toner cartridges recycling. Besides, the Group requests any
relevant parts or materials delivered, provided and/or supplied
by the suppliers shall comply with and observe Directive of the
European Parliament and of the Council on the restriction of the
use of certain hazardous substances in electrical and electronic
equipment (RoHS), Directive of the European Parliament and
of the Council on waste electrical and electronic equipment
(WEEE), Directive of the European Parliament and of the Council
on registration, evaluation, authorisation and restriction of
chemicals (REACH) and other standards.

In order to enhance the administrative efficiency, the 1ISO9001
Quality Management System and [SO14001 Environmental
Management System have been combined since 2000. On-site
surveillance assessment is conducted regularly by independent
assessors to ensure compliance and continual improvement.
Internal audit teams have been organised to perform
compliance audit on an on-going basis.

As to care for the community, the Group participated in”Blood
Donation and Bone Marrow Registration Campaign”launched by
Red Cross at Hong Kong Science Park in March 2011 and we
encourage our colleagues to become donors and give a helping
hand to the patients who are in need of blood or bone marrow
to sustain their lives. Moreover, the Group was a venue sponsor
for Lutheran Family Life Education Unit (Shatin) for organizing
some talks on family life during the fiscal year.
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The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of
corporate governance practices with a view to protecting the
interests of all of its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) throughout the financial year
ended 31st March, 2012 as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exactly than the
required standard set out in the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”). Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, all Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the financial
year ended 31st March, 2012.

THE BOARD

Currently, the Board of the Company comprises nine Directors,
including six Executive Directors, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson Jp (Chairman), Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing
Director), Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani,
Mr. Lee Koon Hung and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith; and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing
Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, J,, Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong
Kon Man, Jason. During the financial year ended 31st March,
2012, Dr. Fok Ting Yeung, James resigned as an Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 16th March, 2012.
Save as disclosed herein, there has been no change as to the
composition of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

THE BOARD (continued)

The Board meets regularly and board meetings are held at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices
of regular board meetings are served to all Directors at least
fourteen days before the meetings to ensure that all Directors
are given the opportunity to attend. Agenda and accompanying
board papers are sent out to all Directors at least three days in
advance to ensure that all Directors are given the opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.
Draft minutes of board meetings are circulated to all Directors
for comment within a reasonable time prior to confirmation.
Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered
by the Board and decisions reached.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2012, four board
meetings were held and the individual attendance of each

NN Director is set out below:
HESBXRE
Number of
meetings attended
BTES Executive Directors
BEREZA Yo+ (T/E) Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman) 4/4
EBEX Tam Wai Tong, Thomas 4/4
(EFA4EHE) (Managing Director)
EERE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian 4/4
RKAME Kazuhiro Otani 4/4
=y Lee Koon Hung 4/4
EEF Fok Ting Yeung, James 3/3
(RZZE—Z%F (resigned with effect from
= A+REEE) 16th March, 2012)
ERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith 4/4
BIYFBITES Independent Non-executive Directors
BKEPLEMES  SBHE ATM+ Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, Jp 4/4
AT [ A Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 4/4
EFHX Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4

EXgRANEAEE BB EBERE B
ARERAKEZVHERE  BRERKIE
MBEBRRLREEEEBZAREETIF R
AEBESHMYKERBEITENER - 8
TERMKEREERA  UREBIMEXNE
JIREREEBEENRERE - EEBERE
BREAFREBEERTREE °

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies
and policies of the Group, reviewing and monitoring its
financial performance, including preparing and approving
financial statements and overseeing operational matters of
the management, considering the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function and their training programmes
and budget. Daily business operations and administration
functions are delegated to the management.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules, sufficient
number of Independent Non-executive Directors have been
appointed with one of them has appropriate accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Board has received
annual confirmation of independence from the Independent
Non-executive Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

The relationship between Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and Mr.
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas is brothers. Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai,
Vivian is the wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp. The relationship
between Mr. Lee Koon Hung and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith
is husband and wife. Save for these relationships, there are
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

Currently, the Company has set up five committees including
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee,
Management Committee, Share Option Committee and
Nomination Committee. Each committee is delegated with
various responsibilities by the Board in assisting the Board in
the discharge of its duties and to administer particular aspects
of the Group’s activities. Details of the role and function of
each committee are summarized below.

Executive

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Managing Director are Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson Jp and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas respectively. The
roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director are clearly
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual. The
Chairman’s principal responsibility is to manage the Board and
the Managing Director's principal responsibility is to manage the
Company’s business. In particular, the Chairman is responsible
for the Group’s corporate planning and financial management
whereas the Managing Director is responsible for the overall
marketing and sales strategies of the Group’s products.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of appointment of each of the Non-executive
Directors are fixed for a specific term, and shall be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 1996. The
Company has adopted terms of reference in compliance with
code provision B.1.3 (amended to B.1.2 with effect from
1st April, 2012) of the Code. The Remuneration Committee
comprises an Independent Non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason (appointed as the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 20th March, 2012),
an Executive Director, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
(acted as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee until
19th March, 2012) and an Independent Non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure in relation to remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company. It schedules to meet at least
once a year for reviewing the remuneration of the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company and
assessing performance of Executive Directors. In determining
and approving the remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company, the Remuneration Committee
shall consider factors such as market competitiveness, individual
performance and achievement and Company and divisional
profitability.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting during the
financial year ended 31st March, 2012 for approving the salary
adjustment for Executive Directors and senior management
of the Company. The attendance of each member is set out
below:

HESBRH™
Number of
meetings attended

THX
EERATHL
fa] B A

Wong Kon Man, Jason 171
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp 11
Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 171
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Company
has adopted terms of reference in compliance with code
provision C.3.3 of the Code. Currently, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, Jp (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon
Man, Jason.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
providing an independent and professional advice on financial
reporting, and evaluating the effectiveness of internal control
(including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget)
and the sufficiency of external and internal audits.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2012, the Audit
Committee has held four meetings to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted, discuss and evaluate internal
control procedures, risk management and financial reporting
matters. It also ensures that the Group complies with all
applicable laws and regulations. The attendance of each
member is as follows:

HEEBRY™
Number of
meetings attended

AkHiEgmes guys
fa] B A
THX
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Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBS, MH, JP 4/4
Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 4/4
Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4

After each Audit Committee meeting, the Chairman of the
Audit Committee will present a report to the Board which
highlights any significant issues discussed in the meeting for
the Board'’s information and consideration. To assist the Audit
Committee to carry out its duties, the Process Improvement and
Internal Audit Sub-committee was formed in 2002 to provide
support to frontline functions in improving business operations
and performing internal audit. Internal audit reports will be
directly sent to the Audit Committee periodically.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established in
2005 with written terms of reference to operate as a general
management committee under the authority of the Board.
Currently, the Executive Management Committee comprises
six Executive Directors, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
(Chairman of the Executive Management Committee), Mr. Tam
Wai Tong, Thomas, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro
Otani, Mr. Lee Koon Hung and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith.
Dr. Fok Ting Yeung, James resigned as the member of the
Executive Management Committee with effect from 16th
March, 2012.

SHARE OPTION COMMITTEE

The Share Option Committee was established in 1996 with
written terms of reference to deal with issues regarding any
grant of share options under the Company’s share option
scheme. In any case, the grant of the Company’s share options
to any Director or his associates requires the approval of the
Company’s Independent Non-executive Directors. The Share
Option Committee comprises two Executive Directors, namely
Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (Chairman of the Share Option
Committee) and Mr. Lee Koon Hung.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012
with written terms of reference. Currently, the Nomination
Committee comprises an Independent Non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), an Executive Director, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson Jp and an Independent Non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
appointment or reappointment of Directors, and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board, who led by the Chairman, assumes overall
responsibility for the corporate governance of the Company and
no separate corporate governance board committee would be
established by the Group.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year under review, the total remuneration in respect
of audit services and non-audit services provided by the
Company’s auditors are HK$1,100,000 and HK$135,000
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the Company’s financial statements. The statement of the
auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in “Independent Auditors’
Report” on pages 35 to 36 of the annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for internal control of the
Group. The system of internal control is designed to manage
and eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee
was formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions
in improving business operations and performing internal
audit. Internal audit reports will be directly sent to the Audit
Committee periodically. A comprehensive policy and standard
governing the process improvement and internal audit scope
and workflow, authority and integrity of the audit staff, was
promulgated in September 2006. After each Audit Committee
meeting, the Chairman of the Audit Committee will address the
significant internal audit findings for the Board’s information
and consideration.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries
which cover the review of risk management functions, the
Company’s material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls, the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget. The Board considered the internal control system
effective and adequate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to enhancing investor relationship by
increasing its transparency to the investor community. Measures
to keep investors informed of the Group's latest developments
comprehensively and timely include posting of press release
and announcements on the Group’s website and e-mail news
updates. A Shareholders Communication Policy was adopted
by the Board in March 2012 to ensure that shareholders are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Group. The policy is
posted on the Company’s website.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. TAM Wai Ho, Samson Jp, aged 48, is the Chairman of
the Company and one of the founders of the Group. He is
responsible for the Group’s corporate planning and financial
management. He has been one of the members of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company since November 1996 and March 2012
respectively. He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Science and later was awarded
the degree of Doctor of Philosophy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He received “The Young Industrialist
Award of Hong Kong” awarded by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in September 1992 and was awarded as one of the
“Ten Outstanding Young Persons” in November 1997. He is a
member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong (Information
Technology Functional Constituency), chairman of Hong Kong
Trade Development Council ICT Services Advisory Committee
and a member of The Hong Kong — European Union Business
Co-operation Committee. He is the younger brother of Mr. Tam
Wai Tong, Thomas, the Managing Director of the Company
and the husband of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an Executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, aged 50, is the Managing Director
of the Company and one of the founders of the Group. He
is responsible for the overall marketing and sales strategies
of the Group’s products. He has a Diploma in Electronic
Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has
over twenty-seven years of experience in marketing electronic
components and consumer electronic products. He received
“Advanced Technology Development Award” of “Capital
Magazine's Outstanding Information Technology and Financial
Enterprise Awards” in August 2001. He is the elder brother of
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, the Chairman of the Company and
the brother-in-law of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an Executive
Director of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mrs. TAM Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, aged 44, is an Executive Director
of the Company. She joined the Group in February 1992
and is responsible for human resources management and
administrative matters of the Group. She has been one of the
members of the Share Option Committee of the Company since
November 1996. She has obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Arts
from the University of Hong Kong and a Master's degree in
Training and Human Resource Management from the University
of Leicester, United Kingdom, and has over twenty-two years
of experience in management and administration. Mrs. Tam is
the wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, the Chairman of the
Company and the sister-in-law of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas,
the Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. Kazuhiro OTANI, aged 51, joined the Company as Executive
Director in April 1997. He is responsible for OEM/ODM business
in the Strategic Product Division and corporate business
planning of the Group. He is the chief executive officer and
president of Kabushiki Kaisha Group Sense, a subsidiary of
the Group in Japan. He graduated from the Kansai University
of Foreign Studies in Osaka, Japan with a Bachelor of Arts
in Foreign Languages, and has been working for a Japanese
electronics company for fourteen years before he joined the
Group. He has spent the latter ten years in the Hong Kong
office of this Japanese company since 1987, being responsible
for sales and marketing of electronic components such as IC,
LCD, etc.

Mr. LEE Koon Hung, aged 49, joined the Group in 1988 and
was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in April
1998. He is responsible for the personal communication
products business of the Group. He has been one of the
members of the Share Option Committee of the Company since
April 2003. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with Higher Certificate in Electronic Engineering and
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science from Asia
International Open University and a Master of Science’s degree
in Engineering Business Management from the University
of Warwick, United Kingdom. He has twenty-eight years
of experience in product development. He is the husband
of Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith, an Executive Director of the
Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. LUK Chui Yung, Judith, aged 45, joined the Group in 1989
and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in
June 2007. She is responsible for improving the efficiency and
effectiveness of the manufacturing, supply chain, operation as
well as the central procurement of the Group. She graduated
from the City University of Hong Kong with a Higher Diploma
in Business Management. She has twenty-three years of
experience in marketing & sales of consumer electronic
products. She is the wife of Mr. Lee Koon Hung, an Executive
Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YUNG Wing Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, Jp, aged 54, member of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference — National
Committee, Certified Financial Planner®™™, Registered Financial
Consultant, Chartered Financial Practitioner, is an executive
district director of American International Assurance Company
(Bermuda) Limited. He is also the Hong Kong and Macau Chair
of International Association of Registered Financial Consultants.
He was awarded the International EMBA from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. He joined the Company
as Independent Non-executive Director in January 1995 and
has been one of the members of the Audit Committee since
March 1999. He has over thirty years of experience in insurance
and received “The Ten Outstanding Young Persons Award”
in November 1994. He was the chairman of The Outstanding
Young Persons’ Association (2000-2002), the president of The
Life Underwriter Association Hong Kong (1991), the president
of the General Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong
(1995-1996), the co-chairman of the Asia Pacific Life Insurance
Council (1996-1997) and the international committee chairman
of GAMA International (1997-1999). He is a council member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the founding
president of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. He also sits in a number of non-governmental
organizations and Government committees as either chairman
or committee member.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. HO Kwok Shing, Harris, aged 52, is the director of G2B
Company Limited. He joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director in January 1995. He has been the
member of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company since
November 1996, March 1999 and March 2012 respectively.
He has obtained a Diploma in Journalism from the Shue Yan
University and a Master’'s degree in Business Administration
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over
twenty-nine years of experience in marketing consumer
electronic products.

Mr. WONG Kon Man, Jason, aged 48, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member
of the Audit Committee in September 2004. He has been a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company since January 2005 and March
2012 respectively. He graduated from The University of Hawaii
with a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration majoring
in Accounting. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has over seventeen years of
experience in accounting and auditing. At present, Mr. Wong
is the managing director of Fortune Capital Group Limited. He
is currently an independent non-executive director of Polyard
Petroleum International Group Limited and Neo-Neon Holdings
Limited, companies listed on the Growth Enterprise Market and
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
respectively; and an independent director of China Shen Zhou
Mining & Resources, Inc.,, a company listed on the American
Stock Exchange.

EE(BBR)ERA2A 2012 @ FHE

25



26

EERSREEAE[N(E)

Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

EREEAE

FERB_EE  BES4AR - RAKENB AR —
REZLIERERAALEEEHMNEERA
AMBGHEBEREBEERNITES - BIFARE
AERBEZIHEERTIBNU R_TT=F
TAMAREER GEHBEMREBEET
EmTHCERBB - TH5&% -

BRSO S 4 - BLEFSIHE - A K B 2 R M
BREFMEE  RRENEDARYAS - B
BFHERNERLEM - REBTREME
SHECEREA-TAFER  RR—ANE
FMAKKE -

BMBEXELE BF4Sm RASEZMBEE
RARBZRARIME - REBEEBETARZR
BrREXEAELEM I RFFARBSETE
REERGERBLEGIMAG S - WR
—HNN=ZFMAXEE RUBREFHIER
BB _TFER-

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Chi Hung, Francis, aged 54, is the executive director
of Marketing and Business Development of Group Sense PDA
Limited and Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited, subsidiaries
of the Group. He holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from University of East Asia. Prior to joining
the Group in December 2003, he has more than twenty years
of experience in marketing and manufacturing of consumer
electronic products.

Mr. CHAN Ho Bun, Steve, aged 51, is the general manager
of the Group’s Strategic Product Division. He graduated from
University of Birmingham, United Kingdom with a Bachelor of
Science in Computer Science. He has over twenty-six years of
experience in the field of electronics and computer products.
He joined the Group in 1993.

Mr. CHENG Yiu Kong, aged 45, is the financial controller of
the Group and the company secretary of the Company. He
holds a Master of Professional Accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Certified
Public Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He joined the Group in 1993 and has over twenty
years of experience in finance and accounting field.
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Report of the Directors

The Board presents its annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities
and associates are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to the
financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2012
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 37.

No interim dividend was paid during the year and the
Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend
to shareholders for the year ended 31st March, 2012. The
retention of the loss of the Group as at 31st March, 2012 was
HK$121,271,599.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st March, 2012:

(i)  The Group's largest customer and five largest customers
accounted for 11% and 40% respectively of the Group's
total revenue.

(i)  The Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for 3% and 15% respectively of the Group's
total purchases (not including purchases of items which
are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the Board, none of the
Directors, their associates or any shareholders who owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest in
the five largest customers nor the five largest suppliers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired leasehold improvement
HK$61,543, furniture, fixtures and equipment HK$852,989,
plant and machinery HK$368,359, toolings and moulds
HK$3,932,785, motor vehicles HK$1,023,082 and construction
in progress HK$25,347,176.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st March 2012, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended). In addition, the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of HK$409,710,189, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman)
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian
Kazuhiro Otani
Lee Koon Hung
Fok Ting Yeung, James
(resigned with effect from 16th March, 2012)
Luk Chui Yung, Judith

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBS, MH, Jp
Ho Kwok Shing, Harris
Wong Kon Man, Jason

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company's Bye-laws,
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith and
Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a term of no more than one year.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBS, MH,
JP, Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason,
an annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31st March, 2012, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

FEEERROBE (FR)
Number of ordinary shares held (long position)
HeBITREZ

EEHE EEEE PN E RikER Hit & R B

Personal Family Other % of issued
Names of directors Nature of interests interests interests interests Total share capital
BERAFEL M —R= 31,732,000 — 537,877,118 569,609,118 47.56
Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP Notes 1 & 2
BER E—R= 34,732,000 — 537,877,118 572,609,118 47.81
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas Notes 1 & 2
BERE M — 2,300,000 — 537,877,118 540,177,118 45.10
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian Note 1
RAFE 2,000,000 — — 2,000,000 0.17
Kazuhiro Otani
By 1,676,000 — — 1,676,000 0.14
Lee Koon Hung
ERA 550,000 — — 550,000 0.05
Luk Chui Yung, Judith
B 5 Notes:

HEERELTATET BHZELALIRERRXEL
ERAZRM P - F537,877,1188% B 1 #9 LA Earnmill
Holdings Limited 2% & &5 * #Z A AlEHThe Samson
1992 Trust & The Thomas 1992 Trusti% #f [A 17 8 & &R
E i BEA © The Samson 1992 Trust A —HEEAREE
HOHEBREXRAREZEERBE LATFALRE
Bl (B B85 24+ ° The Thomas 1992 Trust2—TAZ
EREGT HE2BEREXZADEEREREELER
HERBBEREBHALL  EEZHELATEL  BEE
£ 7+ Kk FE & E 5 A9 A Earnmill Holdings Limited 2
BF

2. NERERBEEZEIATH I RERREEHAE
5 #925,732,0000% f& 17 °
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Of the shares held by Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka
Wai, Vivian and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, 537,877,118 shares are
registered in the name of Earnmill Holdings Limited, a company ultimately
beneficially owned by The Samson 1992 Trust and The Thomas 1992
Trust in equal shares. The Samson 1992 Trust is a discretionary trust, the
discretionary beneficiaries of which include Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
and Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (the spouse of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson
JP). The Thomas 1992 Trust is a discretionary trust, the discretionary
beneficiaries of which include Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas and Mrs. Tam
Ng Lai Yuen, Jocelyn (the spouse of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas). Dr. Tam
Wai Ho, Samson JP, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian and Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas, being Directors, are also directors of Earnmill Holdings Limited.

Included above is the 25,732,000 shares which are jointly owned by
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(continued)

The interests of the Directors and their associates in the share
options granted by the Company are set out in the section
“Share Options” in the Report of Directors.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2012, none of the
Directors or their associates had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s share option
scheme are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Names of shareholders

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during
the financial year ended 31st March, 2012.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st March, 2012, the register of substantial shareholders
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued
capital of the Company:

FREBERROHE
(##)

Number of ordinary shares
held (Long Position)

HERITREAZEDE

% of issued share capital

Earnmill Holdings Limited

DJE Investment S.A.

Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG

Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT

1. SEEREL X EFHBEE S S ITRESE R
A -

2. DJE Investment SAE AR ELHE  BREHR
72,284,0000% f% 19 ° DJE Investment S.A.281% 1z
J5EDr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG#E# » MDr. Jens
Ehrhardt Kapital AG 2 68.5% 4 %5 Bl 3 Dr. Jens Alfred
Karl EHRHARDT#2 | « Ut - DJE Investment S.A. -
Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AGX Dr. Jens Alfred Karl

EHRHARDT# A sk iR AR E B U SR 2 -
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537,877,118 4491
(Mf 7= —) (Note 1)
72,284,000 6.04
(B 3£ =) (Note 2)
72,284,000 6.04
(Mf 7 =) (Note 2)
72,284,000 6.04
(B 5F =) (Note 2)
Notes:
1. The shareholding is also included in the “Directors’ Interests in Securities”
disclosed above.
2. DJE Investment S.A. held 72,284,000 shares as an investment manager.

DJE Investment S.A. was 81% controlled by Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG,
which was in turn 68.5% controlled by Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT.
Therefore, DJE Investment S.A., Dr Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG and Dr. Jens
Alfred Karl EHRHARDT were all interested or deemed to be interested
in such shares.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2012, the Company had
not been notified by any persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
the existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Company’s Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to
the printing of this report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors on
terms no less exactly than the required standard set out in the
Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors have complied with, the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the financial year ended 31st
March, 2012.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBs,
MH, JP (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ho Kwok Shing,
Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason.

During the year, the Audit Committee has held four meetings
with 100% attendance to review the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discuss internal control and
financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2012.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
Chairman

Hong Kong
26th June, 2012
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To the shareholders of Group Sense (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 37 to 142,
which comprise the consolidated and Company statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

EE(BB)BERAT 2012 @ F3H &
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

26 June 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehenswe Income

—T——F=RB=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2012

—F-=F —F——F
2012 2011
(o= FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
A REVENUE 5 478,708 622,855
FER-AP W Cost of sales (350,395) (446,373)
£ A Gross profit 128,313 176,482
B A Mz - FE Other income and gains, net 5 15,588 12,175
i E KoK A Selling and distribution costs (42,681) (48,633)
T H Administrative expenses (96,263) (89,694)
M EAETH Research and development expenses (78,274) (79,715)
B Other expenses (3,467) (1,600)
B & AR Finance costs 7 (511) —
e — X FEHIEE  Share of profit/(loss) of a
il /(JEETE jointly-controlled entity 423 (500)
BAE B LOSS BEFORE TAX 6 (76,872) (31,485)
MIB Income tax expenses 10 (46) (292)
KEEEIE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (76,918) (31,777)
His2EWK A OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
WEBINEE 2 Exchange differences on translation of
M H =58 foreign operations 6,328 10,888
AEEXHEEIEEE  TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR (70,590) (20,889)
FEAE SR, (B 8) Profit/(loss) attributable to:
ARG BRERFAEA Equity holders of the Company 11 (73,182) (31,807)
FEEH R Non-controlling interests (3,736) 30
(76,918) (31,777)
FEiE2mEUW A (E18) Total comprehensive income/(loss)
B attributable to:
KRARIRERAFA Equity holders of the Company (67,277) (21,175)
I 1 Il = Non-controlling interests (3,313) 286
(70,590) (20,889)
EATEBR LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
RESBAEL ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
BREE OF THE COMPANY 13
ERGENM) Basic (HK cents) (6.1) (2.7)
o5 OB Diluted (HK cents) (6.1) (2.7)

BREBREZHBER

AR EERM FE12 »

statements.

EE (BB)ERAF

Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial
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—E-—F =
2012 2011
B 5 FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
WME - WMERFZHE Property, plant and equipment 14 121,525 101,091
ENEERE Prepaid lease payments 15 17,017 17,082
iR T B A AR Deferred development costs 16 890 1,265
HEZEGEBEDS Interests in jointly-controlled entities 18 12,344 16,670
H“A AR &= Interests in associates 19 — —
AItHERE Available-for-sale investments 20 38,218 38,153
REES Long term deposits 21 5,811 4,942
IEREBEERT Total non-current assets 195,805 179,203
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 22 77,367 116,063
FEU B 5 BR K Trade receivables 23 59,640 90,424
FENRIE  Ze Rk Prepayments, deposits and other
H A i Ug BR 3R receivables 24 42,473 50,391
JE I B 2 X |) BR 3R Amounts due from associates 19 1,423 1,453
WAFERLAEIZE  Investments at fair value through
ZHE profit or loss 25 8,261 8,450
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 26 — 227
HekBeSHEEE Cash and cash equivalents 27 138,990 163,900
MEEELS Total current assets 328,154 430,908
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
EREZERR Trade and
FET R 1% bills payables 28 39,666 38,554
HiERER K Other payables
EstBE&E and accruals 29 52,585 88,205
MERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing 30 20,000 —
JE 5 R 3K Tax payable 155 9,644
mEBERE Total current liabilities 112,406 136,403
RBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 215,748 294,505
BEFE Net assets 411,553 473,708

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

MKZT—=—F=A=+—H As at 31 March 2012

—E-_F —E——F
2012 2011
B 5 FE T FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fi% ¥ EQUITY
ERATREFEA Equity attributable to equity holders
PE 4 B 4 of the Company
BE T AR Issued capital 32 119,766 119,766
i Reserves 34(a) 287,637 350,201
407,403 469,967
FEEHER Non-controlling interests 4,150 3,741
[1% #E 4B 58 Total equity 411,553 473,708
BEEzE izt ERREEE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
o Ea
Director Director

EE (BB)ERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-T——F=FB=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2012

KREIRERBAER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
&%
B#1 ki RERE BEXER 1S Hh ERR® FEEH i
RA ORER* HE* i~ Ff*  HE* ff* RiBAEY  £8 B EE
Share Share Capital Exchange Non-
Issued  premium option  redemption Special Other fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital  account*  reserve*  reserve* reserve* - reserve*  reserve* losses * Total interests equity
ik TEr FEL TER FEL TEL TER TEL ThET FiEx ThEr FiEx
Note ~ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
(W 5%
34(a))
(note
34(a))
RZZ-FF 1 April 2010
mA—A 119,766 409,710 2,856 419 (60,819) — 38,348 (19,138) 491,142 3,455 494,597
FEEN/ Profit/(loss) for the
(B8) year — - — — - - - (31,807)  (31,807) 30 (31,777)
AEEEM Other comprehensive
2ENE: income
for the year:
TEENEB 2 Exchange
ERER differences
on translation
of foreign
operations — — — — — — 10,632 — 10,632 256 10,888
REE2EWRE,/  Total comprehensive
(BB &R income/(l0ss)
for the year — — — — — — 10,632 (31,807)  (21,175) 286 (20,889)
RZZ-——F At 31 March 2011
ZA=+-HBEk  andat1 April
RZB——F 201
mA—A 119,766 409,710 2,856 419 (60,819) — 48,980 (50,945) 469,967 3,741 473,708
rEEER Loss for the year — - — — - — - (73182) (73182 (3,736)  (76,918)
REFEAM Other comprehensive
PENE: income for the
year:
FEENEBZ  Exchange
ERZEH differences on
translation
of foreign
operations - - — - - — 5,905 - 5,905 423 6,328
AEE2ERE/  Total comprehensive
(BB &8 income/(l0ss)
for the year — — — — — — 5,905 (73,182)  (67,277) (3,313) (70,590
il Change in ownership
%ﬁﬁ%’é E & 2@5 interest
in a subsidiary 17 — — — — — 4713 — — 4713 3,722 8,435
R/ GUEE  Transfer of share
RREEBZESL  option reserve
RIRERE upon the lapse/
forfeiture
of share options — —  (2,856) — — — — 2,856 — —
RZE——F At 31 March 2012
ZA=+-H 119,766 409,710 — 419 (60,819) 4,713 54,885 (121,271) 407,403 4,150 411,553
* WERBEEEENGAMBRNER 254 F15287,637,0008 T (=2 —— These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$287,637,000 (2011: HK$350,201,000)

4 1350,201,0007% ) * in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-T——F=FB=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2012
—EB-——F —T——%F
2012 20M
Bt & FEx FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REXBZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
13 31 5 8 Loss before tax (76,872) (31,485)
o Adjustments for:
ﬁﬂﬁﬁi$ Finance costs 7 511 —
FEqE— A B S Share of (profit)/loss of a
(& F /Eﬁ B jointly-controlled entity (423) 500
RITH BUA Bank interest income 5 (1,335) (695)
BRAFELABRERZ Interest income from investments
BEMBWA at fair value through profit or loss 5 (427) (2,080)
AHEEREZ Dividend income from available-for-sale
P B U A investments 5 (1,134) (1,062)
HEWE  BER Gain on disposal of items of property, plant
FHEEE 2 and equipment 5 (1,041) (1,336)
/NS ] EE)\TEE‘&EZ& Fair value losses on investments at fair value
B RTEER 8 through profit or loss, net 5 189 1171
TESRMEEZ Fair value gains on derivative
ANFEERZE  FHE financial assets, net 5 — (291)
wE Depreciation 6 12,974 15,364
ENEERE LR Recognition of prepaid lease payments 6 476 464
iF T R BB 7 5 Amortisation of deferred development costs 6 1,104 2,064
GERE Provision for inventories 6 7,351 18,534
HREHE Impairment loss on interests of a jointly-
f’émﬂ@l&ﬁﬁ controlled entity 6 1,600 1,600
ERESRFRERE Impairment loss on trade receivables 6 8,428 —
HiEWERFREEE Impairment loss on other receivables 6 5,082 —
(43,517) 2,748
FEWEM,/w (Increase)/decrease in inventories 31,345 (9,283)
FEWE SR GEM) /B4 (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 22,065 (5,807)
FERIE Tﬁ%& Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other
B B W R FRORL receivables 1,229 7,921
JE Wi Bt o A R BR /Jék b Decrease in amounts due from associates 8 1,380
EREZERR Increase/(decrease) in trade
BREZEEEZ N,/ CRD) and bills payables 1,112 (45,196)
Hin B R K Increase/(decrease) in other payables
[EEtBEE M/ Ol ) and accruals (35,433) 34,193
@Iiﬁ?&ﬂﬁﬁZﬁ@‘ Decrease in derivative financial assets 227 29
KEEBMERZR S Cash used in operations (22,964) (14,015)
BEREEHE Hong Kong taxes paid (9,487) (23,586)
EREsNIE Overseas taxes paid (48) (154)
REEBZRERLFE Net cash flows used in operating activities (32,499) (37,755)

EE (BB)ERAF
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HE-T——F=FB=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2012
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—E-CF —T——%F
2012 201
Bt & FEx FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REEB 2R SR HFE Net cash flows used in operating activities (32,499) (37,755)
REXBZHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FLEWA Interest received 1,335 695
BAFETDABRERZ Interest received from investments at fair value
REZHBHA through profit or loss 427 2,080
AHEEREZ Dividend income from available-for-sale
& S A investments 1,134 1,062
BAVE BER Purchases of items of property,
HEHEE plant and equipment (29,979) (29,294)
HEWE  BMENREERBZ Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
P13 318 plant and equipment 1,342 1,417
HE—MBARIMHERZ  Proceeds from disposal of partial interest
P15 318 in a subsidiary 8,435 -
NI FE R B AR Additions to deferred development costs 16 (727) (296)
HE A ﬁ’i?ﬁ;ﬁ Investment in available-for-sale investments (8) (9,706)
FE W — SR R 2 ) B BB R K (Increase)/decrease in an amount due from a
(3% ﬂﬂ)//ﬁ/ jointly-controlled entity 3,149 (5,648)
El—&aAEH Increase in an amount due from a
AR ZUE N joint-venture partner — (93)
RHZS 0EmM,/md (Increase)/decrease in long term deposits (812) 261
HEIBHRAFELZA Proceeds from maturity of investment at fair
BaRZBEEMBRE value through profit or loss — 31,033
BREEBZBESRLFE Net cash flows used in investing activities (15,704) (8,489)
REEBECRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BEK A Finance costs (511) —
MIBRTER New bank loans 25,000 —
EERITER Repayment of bank loans (5,000 —
MEFBZRENAFE Net cash flows from financing activities 19,489 —
RERAEEHEERAZ NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
WO FE EQUIVALENTS (28,714) (46,244)
FUzHEEHELEMEEE  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 163,900 201,343
HNEEXZEERE  FHE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 3,804 8,801
FReBERBELSEEE  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 138,990 163,900
RERAEEHE ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
HEEBRDOW CASH EQUIVALENTS 27
Re kRITHESR Cash and bank balances 101,147 132,537
BAREIR=ZMEAR Non-pledged time deposits with original
Bz EREBRER maturity of less than three months
when acquired 37,843 31,363
REGEMBRAER LGS Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
RengRiIEzZR2 consolidated statement of financial position
kB &EEEER and consolidated statement of cash flows 138,990 163,900

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012
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Statement of Financial Position

MKZT—=—F=A=+—H As at 31 March 2012

—E—C—fF —E——%F
2012 2011
(o= FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
OPEERNEIR Interests in subsidiaries 17 606,253 667,245
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
e U B B8 A B BR 3R Due from subsidiaries 17 3,000 3,000
FENRIE  Ze Rk Prepayments, deposits and
H b fE U BR 3K other receivables 24 213 200
& NMIBITE R Cash and bank balances 27 203 199
MEBEEMLSE Total current assets 3,416 3,399
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEEraE Accruals 29 535 503
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,881 2,896
EEHER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
REBAE LIABILITIES 609,134 670,141
kRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FERTBI B QR BR X Due to subsidiaries 17 198,667 197,465
BEFE Net assets 410,467 472,676
B% #E EQUITY
BEITRA Issued capital 32 119,766 119,766
ik 1 Reserves 34(b) 290,701 352,910
fi% ¥ 42 58 Total equity 410,467 472,676
EREEtiTet EEERE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
o EZE
Director Director

EE (BB)ERAF
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located
at 6th Floor, Enterprise Place, No. 5 Science Park West
Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the design,
manufacture and sale of a range of electronic handheld
products, primarily electronic dictionaries, personal
communication products, and manufacture of original
design manufacturing (“ODM") products.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investments at fair value through profit or
loss and derivative financial instruments, which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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ZT-ZHF=A=+—H 31 March 2012

2.1

mEEREE)
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2012. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases. All intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated on
consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

EE(BB)BERAT 2012 @ F3H &
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ZT-ZF=A=+—H 31 March 2012

22 MBHRRRIBBE2 R E 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

REBRANFEHBRENTRERAUAT The Group has adopted the following new and revised

FIFT R BT BBV FREER HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

ERMBMEER HEBME®EER HKFRS 1 Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
ENEA PN B B AR E Amendment Adoption of Hong Kong Financial

HHIEER — B Reporting Standards — Limited
KRR ZERE B Exemption from Comparative

B REERETH HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
BHBREHZHR Adopters

R ZNEET

EB G ERE24 BHEALTHE HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
R (BHEET) (Revised)

FEBEEFE HEBEBRMB®RE HK(IFIRC) — Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFIRC)-Int14
mEREZLZE ZwELZEg) — 2 Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum
g)— 2E® EBFEUREHEED Funding Requirement
145748 FT AR KA 2AEF]

BE(BEBRUBESHR AKETASE HK(IFIRC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
HEREZES) T EE with Equity Instruments
— REE195%

—EFFEEY ETR_E—FF 1 Improvements to Amendments to a number of
BHEEA K  ABEMEEETB HKFRSs 2010 HKFRSs issued in May 2010
= HEER ZEE]T

BRINTE-— MR EE G LERFE24 Other than as further explained below regarding the

BT RBEENEE BV REE impact of HKAS 24 (Revised), and amendments to HKFRS

Al - ZFhHEBNBREELNES 3, HKAS 1 and HKAS 27 included in /mprovements to

5 BRI EREIRRE B SR HKFRSs 2010 (Include other standards as appropriate),

FTHRENEET 2 28 - B Ll E] R 4ag the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no

BRI BB ISR EEL I &S I F 0 significant financial effect on these financial statements.

WRELEEATE -
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these HKFRSs are as
follows:

(a)

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the
definitions of related parties. The new definitions
emphasise a symmetrical view of related party
relationships and clarify the circumstances in which
persons and key management personnel affect
related party relationships of an entity. The revised
standard also introduces an exemption from the
general related party disclosure requirements for
transactions with a government and entities that
are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the same government as the
reporting entity. The accounting policy for related
parties has been revised to reflect the changes in
the definitions of related parties under the revised
standard. The adoption of the revised standard
did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group. Details of the
related party transactions, including the related
comparative information, are included in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
There are separate transitional provisions for each
standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments has had a
significant financial impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group. Details of the key
amendments most applicable to the Group are as
follows:

o HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: The
amendment clarifies that the amendments
to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that
eliminate the exemption for contingent
consideration do not apply to contingent
consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates
precede the application of HKFRS 3 (as
revised in 2008).

EE(BB)BERAT 2012 @ F3H &

47



IR RME(E)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

ZT-ZF=A=+—H 31 March 2012

48

22 IBEBERREEZ2RE(E)

(b)

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012

(&)

FIN - RRAERT AR E T IRE R
BastEB2EEHE 268
RERMAERSBETHRS
BARBRBEIR P 2516 3 W
BhHFEENFFEREZD X
2 T AARFEK AR
PB4 T R L 01 016 1 s
TR HRFEENE - BRI
HB BV B REENHREA
RAEMEEE - JFERE
BmZPIAERMDEARERSZ
NFEFE -

ZFERT AT AR IES|
PARE TS M AR BV B B FE U A
ARy R i A R B ) & AT

BEGHENFIRYFHEX
20 R ABEERREM
2 TE 5 F R B 0 AT R B
DEPHRAVBEHRRM T2
5 e REBEENAAE Ea
EHRIINE M EKESK
DH DT o

BB ERMNR27TRAALRE
VHBHE  RERIAERR
REBEEGFEAFE275H (K=
ZETNFEINHEFESAE
AI5215% - BB GFHERIF28
5 M BB & AR RIS 315 P i
HE R BETABERHERN_-F
ZNFLA-HAiz&BAKZ
FEHHAHARERE LS
FERE27TRF(MEZPRE
E)EM -

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

In addition, the amendment limits the
scope of measurement choices for non-
controlling interests. Only the components
of non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionare share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required
by another HKFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance
to clarify the accounting treatment for non-
replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based
payment awards.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
The amendment clarifies that an analysis of
each component of other comprehensive
income can be presented either in the
statement of changes in equity or in the notes
to the financial statements. The Group elects
to present the analysis of each component of
other comprehensive income in the statement
of changes in equity.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that the
consequential amendments from HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28
and HKAS 31 shall be applied prospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009 or earlier if HKAS 27 is applied
earlier.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

AEELRNUEREREFEABUATE
MR AE R A R AT R RERT BB B

IR E AR in these financial statements.
ERUBREE HEAVBBSENSEIR HKFRS 1 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
AIE1RBEIARN  BARAEEBYHHRE Amendments Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
ER — BESBERLRS Reporting Standards — Severe
BB XIRAZ EE A Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
pACHE Dates for First-time Adopters’
BRUBRELE BAVBREENETRE HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
HQIE7HERIA BIA FHE— 2HE Amendments Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of
EZEEZEE] Financial Assets’
EREVBREE £HTAS HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
Al 595
EERUBREE HFAUKEHRX HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements*
A 5105
BEAUBMEE SELH HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements*
A& 115
ERUBREE RAMTENERFE HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
85125 Entities*
EEMBREE A FEZHTE HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement*
AI5135%
ERGHENE HEHXZEH — A= HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
SRIEET R E W= EE.Z 2 #H Amendments — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?
BEAVBMELE BARAUBREENSIRE HKFRS 1 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
AIEVREBRIAR AR BEEHHFHEE Amendments Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Rl — BFE 2 1EE Reporting Standards — Government
Loans*
BAVBREE BAVBREEANEIRL HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
AIETRIBAIAN BIA -#HigeBEER Amendments Instruments: Offsetting Financial Assets
EHEE BT and financial Liabilities*
EROHERNE FESHERNFE2RAF HKAS 12 Amendments to HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
12558 7] R W — BEHE 1HHE Amendments — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
EYW B 2 ER]? Assets?
BEAGHENE FAGHEANFENTLH HKAS 32 Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
EPATACEIN TR - ZH — Az Amendments Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting

BEGERSE
1958 (Z 2 ——
F)

BREGERE
75 (—E——
F)

BEQERE
28 (=T ——

EEREHAEZER]
ER#EFI*

B HHK

REERTRA LA
R

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities®
Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

%)
FEREER —EFENFEF——FH Annual Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-
Bz FREHE Improvements 2011 Cycle*
Project

EE (BB)ERAF

2012 A F 3| &
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group is in the progress of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs, upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have any significant
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

Further information about those changes that are
expected to significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part
of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely
replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying
financial assets into four categories, an entity shall
classify financial assets as subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both
the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify
the approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS
39.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from
HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement
of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO"). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit
risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
("OCl"). The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the
fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
OClI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under
the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2015.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of
control which is used to determine which entities are
consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS 10
require management of the Group to exercise significant
judgement to determine which entities are controlled,
compared with the requirements in HKAS 27 and
HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also
includes the issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. 1t describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities that are previously included in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, HKAS
31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in
Associates. It also introduces a number of new disclosure
requirements for these entities.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and
HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11 and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, and the consequential amendments
to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28 from 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does
not change the circumstances in which the Group is
required to use fair value, but provides guidance on how
fair value should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted under other HKFRSs. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 13 prospectively from 1 April
2013.

Amendments to HKAS 1 change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for
example, upon derecognition or settlement) would be
presented separately from items which will never be
reclassified. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 April 2013.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of
deferred tax for investment property measured at
fair value. The amendments introduce a rebuttable
presumption that deferred tax on investment property
measured at fair value should be determined on the
basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through
sale. Furthermore, the amendments incorporate the
requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21 /ncome Taxes
— Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets that
deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured using
the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always be
measured on a sale basis. The Group expects to adopt
HKAS 12 Amendments from 1 April 2012.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined benefit
pension plans including removing the choice to defer the
recognition of actuarial gains and losses. Other changes
include modifications to the timing of recognition for
termination benefits, the classification of short-term
employee benefits and disclosures of defined benefit
plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from
1 April 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company's investments in subsidiaries
that are not classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the
other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on
which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control, directly
or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture's
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture's
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence
over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject
to joint control, resulting in none of the participating
parties having unilateral control over the economic activity
of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-
controlled entities is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. Where
the profit sharing ratio is different to the Group's equity
interest, the share of post-acquisition results of the
jointly-controlled entities is determined based on the
agreed profit sharing ratio. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
jointly-controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the jointly-controlled entities,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of jointly-controlled entities is included
as part of the Group’s investments in jointly-controlled
entities.

The results of jointly-controlled entities are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments in
jointly-controlled entities are treated as non-current assets
and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

When an investment in a jointly-controlled entity is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.
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POLICIES (continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist. The Group's share of the post-acquisition
results and reserves of associates is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is
included as part of the Group's investments in associates
and is not individually tested for impairment.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in associates are
treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether it
measures the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
as at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability
will be recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either
in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. If the contingent consideration is classified as
equity, it will not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. In instances where the
contingent consideration does not fall within the scope
of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate HKFRS.
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POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets, and goodwill),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or a parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2%

Leasehold land and
buildings

Leasehold improvements 25%

Furniture, fixtures and 25%
equipment

Plant and machinery 15% to 25%

Tooling and moulds 50%

Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use
or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably
the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products of three years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of
a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments
and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including
prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the income statement so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
terms.
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POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from
the lessor are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’'s financial assets include cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables, loans receivable,
amounts due from a joint-venture partner, associates and
a jointly-controlled entity, quoted and unquoted financial
instruments and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent settlement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in other income
and gains or finance costs in the income statement.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS
39 are satisfied.
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POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent
to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When,
in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly
changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets. The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets or held-to-maturity investments depends
on the nature of the assets. This evaluation does not affect
any financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option at designation as these
instruments cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
held for trading or designated at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance income in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the income statement in finance costs for loans and
in other expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the income statement in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the income
statement in other expenses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets and management’s intent to do
so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted
when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to
maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category
is permitted only when the Group has the ability and
intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial
asset.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate.
If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in the income statement.
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POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted
equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. The determination of what is “significant”
or "prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant” s
evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the income statement
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are
not reversed through the income statement. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables and interest-bearing bank
borrowing.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.
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POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial
instruments where there is no active market, the fair value
is determined using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm'’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

EE(BB)EBERAT 2012 @ FH &
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income over the periods necessary to match
the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is
intended to compensate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been
rendered;

(©) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d)  dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using
a binomial model, further details of which are given in
note 33 to the financial statements.
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POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income
statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value
of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
or loss per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution staff
retirement scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) for
its employees (including certain directors), the assets of
which are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
ORSO Scheme. When an employee leaves the ORSO
Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the relevant
amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’'s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. All differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
taken to the income statement.

All differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are taken to the income statement with
the exception of monetary items that are designated
as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment
of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is
disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is
reclassified to the income statement. Tax charges and
credits attributable to exchange differences on those
monetary items are also recorded in equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss
arising on retranslation of a non-monetary item is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences
on item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities and associates are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period and their income statements are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries and
jointly-controlled entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. A change in the
estimated future cash flows and/or the discount rate
applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

Impairment test of items of property, plant and equipment

Management estimates the recoverable amount of items
of property, plant and equipment when an indication of
impairment exists. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units. Estimating the value
in use requires the management to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. Changing
the assumptions selected by management to determine
the level of impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When
the fair value declines, management makes assumptions
about the decline in value to determine whether there is
an impairment that should be recognised in the income
statement. At 31 March 2012, impairment losses of
HK$10,000,000 have been recognised for available-for-
sale assets (2011: HK$10,000,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss
arising from the inability of its customers to make the
required payments. The Group makes its estimates based
on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If

HEZELRE CE%E - MARKRELL the financial condition of its customers was to deteriorate

gXHEE- so that the actual impairment loss might be higher than
expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis
of making the allowance and its future results would be
affected.
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certain products and undertakes to repair or replace items
that fail to perform satisfactorily. Significant judgement
is required when determining the warranty expenses.
The Group estimates the warranty expenses based on
the actual repair and item replacement costs incurred
for the products sold in the last 24 months. Where the
warranty expenses incurred are different from the original
provision, such difference would impact profit or loss in
the period in which the additional warranty expenses are
incurred.

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions are required in
determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. Determining
the amounts to be capitalised requires management to
make assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied and
the expected period of benefits.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  the electronic handheld products segment designs,
manufactures and sells a range of electronic
handheld products;

(b) the ODM products segment designs, manufactures
and sells ODM products; and

() the corporate and other segment comprises

corporate income, expenses, asset and liability items
related to the Group’s investment activities.

EE(BB)EBERAT 2012 @ FH &
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s loss
before tax except that interest income, finance costs,
dividend income as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude available-for-sale investments,
amounts due from associates and a joint-venture partner,
cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated head
office assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowing, tax payable and other unallocated head office
and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the prevailing market prices.
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EB2BERE)

(continued)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

g+ R &E
BETEM CEER DLERHM wmE
Electronic
handheld ODM Corporate
products products and others Total
BE-Z——-F%F Year ended FET FET FET FET

ZA=+—HLEE 31 March 2012 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEBA: Segment revenue:

HETHARETP Sales to external customers 231,758 246,950 — 478,708
DEER Segment results (48,032) (28,013) 259 (75,786)
E Reconciliation:

F B WA Interest income 1,335
& B M A Dividend income 1,134
Bh & AR Finance costs (511)
—HEZHEERES Impairment loss on interests in

REEE a jointly-controlled entity (1,600)
R —EEBHER Impairment loss on amount due from

LM & 18 a joint venture partner (1,867)
e —HREH EEE Share of profit of a

i A jointly-controlled entity 423
A& 1E Loss before tax (76,872)
PEEE Segment assets 212,030 110,549 21,951 344,530
B Reconciliation:

ROBEEE Unallocated assets 179,429
BEE Total assets 523,959
SEEE Segment liabilities 66,675 25,042 534 92,251
B Reconciliation:

APBREE Unallocated liabilities 20,155
HAE Total liabilities 112,406
HttpEEHR: Other segment information:

FE Al — 2[R 4% Share of profit of a

HEHEF jointly-controlled entity — — (423) (423)
B K g Depreciation and amortisation 7,414 5,090 2,050 14,554
NGB Capital expenditure 29,464 1,832 1,017 32,313*
HEWE  MEKLREEB Z Gain on disposal of items of property,

Wz FE plant and equipment, net (553) (488) — (1,041)
GERE Provision for inventories 4,996 2,355 — 7,351
EmiREEE Product warranty provision 1,193 — — 1,193
FEU B 58 SR E B 18 Impairment loss on trade receivables 8,428 — — 8,428
EH eI BR RRORLE & B Impairment loss on other receivables 5,082 — — 5,082
—HEZEHEERES Impairment loss on interests in a

REEE jointly-controlled entity — — 1,600 1,600
HEE ZFE#ES Interests in jointly-controlled entities — — 12,344 12,344

* EARZBERANE BERREREL *

G N

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and deferred development costs.

EE (BB)ERAF
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4. EBIBER(E) 4.

(continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

¥ F R R
BETE® AEER EREM i
Electronic
handheld ODM Corporate and
products products others Total
HE-ZT——F Year ended F&E T FH& T F&E T FH& T

ZA=+—BLtEE 31 March 2011 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SEBRA: Segment revenue:

HETINARER Sales to external customers 250,900 371,955 — 622,855
DEEE Segment results (41,911) 9,140 1,629 (31,142)
AR Reconciliation:

F B A Interest income 695
B% B A Dividend income 1,062
—HEEZEHEERES Impairment loss on interests in

REEE a jointly-controlled entity (1,600)
M —HRE G EE Share of loss of a

i} jointly-controlled entity (500)
FHATE 8 Loss before tax (31,485)
PEEE Segment assets 197,199 181,105 27,571 405,875
AR Reconciliation:

APEEE Unallocated assets 204,236
HMEE Total assets 610,111
SEEE Segment liabilities 70,659 55,597 503 126,759
AR Reconciliation:

ANEEE Unallocated liabilities 9,644
HAaFE Total liabilities 136,403
HibpBEHR: Other segment information:

FE& (5 — 2[R 1% Share of loss of a

BRER jointly-controlled entity — — 500 500
T8 K B g Depreciation and amortisation 9,090 6,749 2,053 17,892
BEARRX Capital expenditure 23,978 5,446 166 29,590*
HEYME MERZMEEE 2 Gain on disposal of items of property,

Wa - 558 plant and equipment, net (502) (834) — (1,336)
GEREE Provision for inventories 9,934 8,600 — 18,534
EmRERE Product warranty provision 646 — — 646
—HEZEHEERER Impairment loss on interests in

REEE a jointly-controlled entity — — 1,600 1,600
H RS E S Interests in jointly-controlled entities — — 16,670 16,670

* EARXBERANE BERREREL *

FEMA -
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Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and deferred development cost.
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4, EXRDEER(E) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
& & R Geographical information
(a) KEIREFZIA (a)  Revenue from external customers
—E-—C—fF T4
2012 2011
TE T FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
=P Japan 258,209 320,082
BB Hong Kong 88,802 90,706
A e Taiwan 43,534 75,884
1b ZE M North America 14,799 50,814
e Vietnam 12,727 16,782
&g Korea 43 4,048
A Mainland China
(BEBRIN (other than Hong Kong) 17,755 20,492
W EEN =T Other Asian countries 7,116 11,925
EAh Others 35,723 32,122
478,708 622,855

(b)

i ZWABERRREBEEFPOME

The revenue information above is based on the

i o location of the customers.
FER B EE (b)  Non-current assets
—2-=fF —ET-—f
2012 2011
THERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
rh Mainland China
(BAEBRIN (other than Hong Kong) 140,444 127,532
BB Hong Kong 16,808 13,006
Hb Others 335 512
157,587 141,050

LR ZIFERBEEENZREEE
BT AR ERERI

The non-current assets information above is based
on the location of assets and excludes available-for-
sale investments.

EE(BB)EBERAT 2012 @ FH &

91



B mR M (8)
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

ZT-ZF=A=+—H 31 March 2012

92

4. EBIEER(E

ITREFEH
WAKRBEEEF  SFIEAKEEA10%

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted

AL &I

to 10% or more of the Group’'s revenue, are set out

below:

—E-—F
2012
EE R R E
ETE® YEEMm W
Electronic
handheld ODM
products products Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=P Customer A — 51,038 51,038
—E-—F
2011
2L R4 ®E
BFEm EEEMm #aE
Electronic
handheld ODM
products products Total
FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEHR Customer A — 106,385 106,385
B5FEZ Customer B 71,464 — 71,464
BEFA Customer C - 67,774 67,774

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012
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WA Hftgr AR Wz - 5% 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

WARERAEENZXRE - IAFAE
HEEMNERBEFERERERR

ZFIMHEHE -

NET

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for

returns and trade discounts during the year.

WA Hp A R FBATOT An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as
follows:
KEH
Group
— —B——F
2012 2011
THT FE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
KA Revenue
HEBEW Sale of goods 478,708 622,855
Hibr A Other income
BAFELAEBRER ZEE Interest income from investments at
A B A fair value through profit or loss 427 2,080
H|ITH B U A Bank interest income 1,335 695
AR 7 & U A Service fee income 4,164 2,991
AP EREZ Dividend income from available-for-
fi% B U A sale investments 1,134 1,062
E A Others 7,676 4,891
14,736 11,719
Hit Wz FHE Other gains, net
NFEEWE(EE) - J$%8 : Fair value gains/(losses), net:
EAFERA Investments at fair value
BEakikeE through profit or loss (189) (1,171)
PTEEMEE Derivative financial assets — 291
LHEME BERLZES Gain on disposal of items of property,
BBz W= plant and equipment 1,041 1,336
852 456
15,588 12,175

EE (BB)ERAF

2012 A F | &

93



BRI (&)
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

ZT-ZF=A=+—H 31 March 2012

6. BAIEE 6. LOSS BEFORE TAX
REEBZBRBASBEMER(GTA) T3 The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
FIA (crediting):

AEH
Group
—F—=F —T——%
2012 2011
iog=2 FET FAT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EHREFEERA Cost of inventories sold 343,044 427,839
e Depreciation 12,974 15,364
BN HERE Recognition of prepaid lease
R payments 476 464
T 9 J A B X2 M Research and development
expenses:
[ 37 Bod g 03 Deferred development costs
B B KR amortised 1,104 2,064
RFEEMRX Current year expenditure 77,170 77,651
78,274 79,715
BT RETF Minimum lease payments under
rEHEN &R operating leases in respect of
HE X land and buildings 11,423 11,407
% & AT B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,100 1,550
1B B8 F & Employee benefit expense
(BRESEME (including directors’
(ft5E8)) - remuneration (note 8)):
SMEEYD Wages and salaries and
M & benefits in kind 184,586 185,116
RAIRET & 5% Pension scheme contributions 7,627 7,320
192,213 192,436
PE R Z% - F58 Foreign exchange differences, net 2,042 (1,181)
FTEEE Provision for inventories 7,351 18,534
7 o IR 78 R Product warranty provision 1,193 646
Bl —EERMN Impairment loss on amount due
BR SR (B B 18 from a joint venture partner* 1,867 —
—HEIEH EEE Impairment loss on interests in a
T R B B e jointly-controlled entity* 1,600 1,600
FEW B 5 BR K Impairment loss on trade
B B B receivables 8,428 —
E i JE I BR 3K Impairment loss on other
BIEEBE receivables 5,082 —
* —HAEHEEERIER—EGERHEER * Impairment losses on interests in a jointly-controlled entity and
BEEBEDEERGEEEKRERPZ[Hi amount due from a joint venture partner are included in “other
] e expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
Income.
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1.

B E KA FINANCE COSTS
rEE
Group
—E-—fF —E——%F
2012 20M
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REFANRBERZ Interest on bank borrowing wholly
RITEENE repayable within five years 511 —
EEME DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

ARBEBELEMEXSMERAREIRES
ERRATERRAD REERREGIFH
BHEAETHEFANEZTHEN T

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

KEH
Group
s —E——F
2012 2011
THET FE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
e Fees 384 384
EmEe Other emoluments:
Fe  ER Salaries, allowances and
B = benefits in kind 10,997 10,981
HRBHH RS Performance related incentive payments — —
RIRET B Pension scheme contributions 356 360
11,353 11,341
11,737 11,725

EE(BBR)ERA2RA 2012 @ FHE 95
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8. EEM=E(E) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
@ BIFHFTEE (@)  Independent non-executive directors
ERAFAMBLIFRTESEIN The fees paid to independent non-executive
MBS IAT: directors during the year were as follows:
= - 3 —E——%F
2012 2011
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
AKEEEHNES - Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBs,
KEHE  KF@t MH, JP 128 128
o] B FX, Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 128 128
F#x Wong Kon Man, Jason 128 128
384 384
RAFRLEABLIERTEES There were no other emoluments payable to the
NEMMES( T ——F &) independent non-executive directors during the

year (2011: Nil).

(b) BITES (b)  Executive directors
Fe 28 HRBEH#HZ EEE% RREHE
kA RENFZ #e RARERA 3 ame
Salaries, Performance  Equity-settled Pension
allowances and  related incentive share option scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind payments benefits contributions remuneration
FHET TET FiET FTET TET FiET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—C-F 2012
HITES: Executive directors:
BERATHL Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp - 2,744 - — 60 2,804
HEE Tam Wai Tong, Thomas - 2,700 — — 60 2,760
EERE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian - 590 — — 27 617
RAME Kazuhiro Otani - 1,692 - — 63 1,755
TR Lee Koon Hung — 1,166 — - 54 1,220
EEE Fok Ting Yeung, James* — 1,046 — - 44 1,090
ERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith — 1,059 — - 48 1,107
= 10,997 = — 356 11,353
2 2011
HITEE: Executive directors:
BERA T4 Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp — 2,732 — - 60 2,792
HEE Tam Wai Tong, Thomas — 2,698 — — 60 2,758
EERE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian — 591 - — 27 618
RAME Kazuhiro Otani - 1,697 - — 64 1,761
TR Lee Koon Hung — 1,166 — — 54 1,220
EEF Fok Ting Yeung, James — 1,038 — — 47 1,085
ERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith — 1,059 — — 48 1,107
— 10,981 — — 360 11,341
* ErFEtn_—_ZT——F=A+/H# * Dr. Fok Ting Yeung, James resigned as an executive
ERERANITES ° director of the Company with effect from 16 March
2012.
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10.

EEME(E)

b)) #MITEEGE)
RAFA  WEEFFTLEMLH
MELARAEREEAME (ZF——
FE)

hIEBREFEES

REFNAEESHREEBEDE(ZF—
—F B EE - AMSHBEERNLEX
8 o RELHB—H(ZB——F:—

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)  Executive directors (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2011: Nil).

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2011: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration

B)EEFIEEEENTFROT: of the one (2011: one) non-director, highest paid
employee for the year are as follows:
rEH
Group
—2-=F —F—F
2012 2011
FEx FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
4 FAEREYR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,213 1,188
PSRN R Pension scheme contributions 53 52
1,266 1,240

BiTE X b

B A4 AR A A R R R A F S
(B AR RBRR - L EIEH BB
REBRERCT——F @) e
CERHENBEDREREEEE
5 B 1E 2 B 3R o 702 0 I 0 2 o 60 PR 2
HE -

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2011: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the respective countries/jurisdictions in which the Group

operates.

rEE

Group
—E-C—F —E——%
2012 2011
FHE T FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFEBETREN Underprovision in prior years

— BH — Hong Kong — 176
REE — Hib = Current — Elsewhere 46 116
REERENRARE Total tax charged for the year 46 292
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10.

BiIE X W (48)

HARBATEBILARNRE REHE AT
AR EEMETE 2R BE L B HEI
ERBEFE MBI L /(BE)HE -
URERBRBEVEERR) BERB R
HEEWMT

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax credits applicable to loss
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rates, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory
tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

&
Group
—E-C—F —ET——F
2012 2011
THERT THET
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
i Al /&5 18 Loss before tax (76,872) (31,485)

BAEATEMERFE ZFIE Tax at the statutory tax rate
Adjustments in respect of current

BEFEHRBBHER

(13,556) 17.6 (5,509) 17.5

AKEE tax of previous periods — — 176 (0.6)
HEEGH B EWN (Profit)/loss attributable to a

(s F)),/ B 18 jointly-controlled entity (70) 0.1 83 (0.3)
BAMB 2 WA Income not subject to tax (796) 1.0 (1,031) 3.3
A 2 i Expenses not deductible for tax 1,499 (1.9) 95 (0.3)
BARBSA Tax losses utilised from previous

5 IE B 1R periods (721) 0.9 (375) 1.2
REHER ZHIEEE  Tax losses not recognised 13,690 (17.8) 6,853 (21.7)
BAREEBEERBERE Tax charged at the Group's

Z BN B effective rate 46 (0.1) 292 (0.9)

RBE-_TZETNF=A=+—HILFE -
EBERER(BBERMASEBEETWE
AR FR1999/20004F 2= 2004/2005F &R Fi F
BEIHBEES - ARFEERE K&
kMBBEE s EEEZRE  REE_T—
—F=ZR=F+—HBLFE AEECEMN
176,000 T 2 HIB B & ©

RBEE-_T——F=ZA=+—BLLFE"
REREKRBEREZERATANREES
I £ 7N 5% 18 5 AR ORI AR R BE K R &
R e
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During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD") initiated
a tax audit on certain group companies for the years
of assessment from 1999/2000 to 2004/2005. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, after taking the
professional advice from its tax adviser, the Group had
made an additional tax provision of HK$176,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2011.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the IRD has
finalised the tax review and has reached agreement with
the Group on the additional tax liabilities and tax penalty
on these companies.
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11.

12.

13.

ARAREFBARGEER n.

BE-_Z——F=A=t+—HILFEAXRD
AREFAEABRGGABERE —£2
B AN A BB $R = 2 85 862,209,000
BT (ZZ —— 121,496,000 o) (Ff 5
34(b)) °

iz B 12.

EEETERARNBE_ZE—_FR_F—
—FZA=t+—HLEFERNEMBKS -

ARABEBRRREZBEAE 13

EERER

HE-_ZE—FR=-T——F=A=+—
HEFESKRERALRBERERIEN
T

@ BREXERE

BEREAEEBDIREARARL B
BREHSEABEAFEBIE
73,182,000 T (—Z T — — 4 : 518
31,807,000 L) & A F K B2 8 1T
f% 151,197,663,029 (= & — —
1,197,663,029% ) 5T & -

b)) #BERZZ2ERESE
AEBEHE-ZE——_FR_ZF—
—F=Z A=+ —BHUILFELE S
EMEMENNEREAEESBEE
WA REAARDQE R ZMEF
ERTHECEERRENTHEES
RAEARBREBBRHFHTE  Bitt
FHRELARREHERT AR 2E
AEEBEITESETE -

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2012 includes
a loss of HK$62,209,000 (2011: HK$21,496,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 34(b)).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The basic and diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 March 2012 and 2011 have been calculated as
follows:

(@)  Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share amount
is based on the loss for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
HK$73,182,000 (2011: loss of HK$31,807,000) and
the 1,197,663,029 (2011: 1,197,663,029) shares in
issue during the year.

(b)  Diluted loss per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31
March 2012 and 2011 in respect of a dilution as the
exercise price of the share options of the Company
outstanding during the two years was higher than
the average market price of the Company’s ordinary
shares and, accordingly, such share options held
have no dilutive effect on the basic loss per ordinary
shares.

EE(BB)EBERAT 2012 @ FH &
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14. 1% BERRK®E 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RE Group
HE LTt HE -EE MEER I&AR
REF MERE EL ] I# ARE HEIE BE
Leasehold Furniture, Toolings
land and Leasehold fixtures and  Plant and and Motor Construction
buildings  improvements equipment machinery  moulds vehicles in progress Total
—E-CZF 31 March 2012 TExT THET THERT TEr TExz TER TET T#Exn
=A=+-H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
—F-—F At 1 April
mA—H: 2011:
P, A Cost 75,408 25,451 84,853 113,024 127,915 11,332 29,736 467,719
2T E Accumulated
LEE depreciation
and impairment (25,630) (24,713) (79,703)  (101,705) (124,718) (10,159) — (366,628)
BEFE Net carrying amount 49,778 738 5,150 11,319 3,197 1173 29,736 101,091
R-T——F At 1 April
HA—8 - 2011,
BB A net of accumulated
mERRE depreciation and
impairment 49,778 738 5,150 11,319 3,197 1,173 29,736 101,091
nE Additions — 62 853 368 3,933 1,023 25,347 31,586
REFFHR Depreciation provided
nE during the year (1,986) (275) (3,473) (3,919)  (3,176) (145) —  (12,974)
& Disposals — — (21) — — (280) — (301)
#x Transfers — 256 — = — = (256) —
EXES Exchange
realignment 981 46 50 276 27 28 715 2,123
RZE—=F At 31 March
=A=+—-8" 2012,
Bk & net of accumulated
TERRE deprecation and
impairment 48,773 827 2,559 8,044 3,981 1,799 55,542 121,525
RZE—ZF At 31 March
ZA=+—H: 2012:
A Cost 76,888 25,477 82,923 107,079 132,483 10,805 55,542 491,197
25 E Accumulated
RORE depreciation and
impairment (28,115) (24,650) (80,364) (99,035) (128,502)  (9,006) — (369,672)
BEFE Net carrying amount 48,773 827 2,559 8,044 3,981 1,799 55,542 121,525
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14. M¥E BRERZEE) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
KE Group
HELH RE -EE BER IAR
RETF mEEE &S| 125 I# AE rgIR o)
Leasehold Furniture, Toolings
land and Leasehold fixtures and  Plant and and Motor  Construction
buildings improvements equipment machinery  moulds  vehicles in progress Total
—E-—F 31 March 2011 THET THEL THEL THET TEL TER TETL TR
=A=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—T-%F At 1 April
mA—R: 2010:
B AR Cost 73,990 38,165 84,455 129,336 125,932 11,376 10,599 473,853
ZitHE Accumulated
&R depreciation
and impairment (23,672) (35,052) (77,551)  (121,368) (120,569)  (10,060) — (388,272)
REFE Net carrying amount 50,318 3,13 6,904 7,968 5,363 1,316 10,599 85,581
RZZ-ZF At 1 April
mA—H- 2010,
EEICES net of accumulated
MERRE depreciation and
impairment 50,318 313 6,904 7,968 5,363 1,316 10,599 85,581
NE Additions — 362 1,419 6,991 1,593 — 18,929 29,294
AEERHR Depreciation provided
nE during the year (1,507) (2,891) (3,235) (3,758) (3,800) (173) —  (15,364)
& Disposals — — ) (73) (1) — — (81)
[LE Transfers — 42 — — — — (42) —
fEHEY Exchange
realignment 967 112 69 191 42 30 250 1,661
R-ZT——F At 31 March
ZR=t+-8" 2011,
=EICES net of accumulated
MERRE deprecation and
impairment 49,778 738 5,150 11,319 3,197 1173 29,736 101,091
RZE——4F At 31 March
=A=t+—-8: 2011
A Cost 75,408 25,451 84,853 113,024 127915 11,332 29,736 467,719
ZitHE Accumulated
ROR depreciation and
impairment (25,630) (24,713) (79,703) (101,705) (124,718)  (10,159) — (366,628)
REFE Net carrying amount 49,778 738 5,150 11,319 3,197 1173 29,736 101,091

EE (BB)ERAF
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14. WE BERREE) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

RBEHARAEEREIHMREF 2R The net book values of the Group’s leasehold land and
HEEITBAT: buildings at the end of the reporting period are analysed
as follows:
rEE
Group
—E-—F —E——%F
2012 201
FERT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REAZHFHEE Medium term leases in Hong Kong 8,297 8,577
RARzHFHES Medium term leases in Mainland China 40,476 41,201
48,773 49,778
15. ENHEERSE 15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
AEH
Group
—F-=F =%
2012 2011
FER FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RUA—BZEHRE Carrying amount at 1 April 17,531 17,601
RAFEEMAR(M5E6)  Recognised during the year (note 6) (476) (464)
[ 5, & 5| Exchange realignment 422 394
R=ZA=+—HZBIEEE Carrying amount at 31 March 17,477 17,531

BIAFER I8 - % K E Current portion included in
W R 2w B #  prepayments, deposits and

other receivables (460) (449)
ETRENE D Non-current portion 17,017 17,082
HEIHURPREAFFHEERSE - The leasehold lands are held under a medium term lease

and are situated in Mainland China.
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16. iE ZE B 3% B K

17.

16. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

KEE
Group
—E-—F —E——F
2012 2011
FHE T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HmA—H At 1 April:
BN Cost 38,128 37,795
ES: £ Accumulated amortisation
AN and impairment (36,863) (34,784)
IR E Net carrying amount 1,265 3,011
RO A—HZ KA Cost, net of accumulated amortisation
W2 FHE S RO E and impairment, at 1 April 1,265 3,01
[ 5 & 5| Exchange realigment 2 22
o — WEBF Additions — internal development 727 296
FEEHEBE M) Amortisation provided during
the year (note 6) (1,104) (2,064)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 890 1,265
R=ZA=+—8: At 31 March:
K 7R Cost 38,836 38,128
R Accumulated amortisation
AN and impairment (37,946) (36,863)
BRMEFE Net carrying amount 890 1,265
Fft BB D B R %% 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
KAF
Company
— —F-—fF
2012 2011
T#E T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ELEMIKE  HERA Unlisted investments, at cost 269,256 269,334
JE U BT B8 2 ) BR 3R Due from subsidiaries 767,253 767,245
1,036,509 1,036,579
R E" Less: Impairment* (427,256) (366,334)
609,253 670,245
& A Y 8 2 B BR 3R Due to subsidiaries
(B 5£40) (note 40) (198,667) (197,465)

EE(BBR)ERA2RA 2012 @ FHE 103
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17. WERR#EzE(E)

# HAREESTHB RSB ESRBERE
2 5t 8 M 269,256,000 T (— T — — F :
269,334,000 7T) 767,253,000/ 7T (=& —
—4F : 767,245,000 7T) (R 0 BR & (8 5 18 A1)
ZETHEMBEEERBE - RAFR - 28
9161,000,0007% 7T (= & — — £ : 20,000,000
B Z REREWHEARRRFER -

17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

# Impairments were recognised for interests in subsidiaries and
amounts due from subsidiaries with a carrying amount of
HK$269,256,000 (2011: HK$269,334,000) and HK$767,253,000
(2011: HK$767,245,000) (before deducting the impairment loss),
respectively, because certain subsidiaries of the Group have
been making loss persistently. During the year, an additional
impairment of HK$61,000,000 (2011: HK$20,000,000) was
recognised on the amounts due from subsidiaries.

MEBAT R HEEE T : The movement in the impairment of interests in
subsidiaries is as follows:
ART
Company
—E——F —E——F
2012 20M
FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
®HA—H At 1 April 366,334 346,334
BB E B R Impairment losses recognised 61,000 20,000
B8R 2 BR 3Kk Amount written off (78) —
R=A=+—H At 31 March 427,256 366,334
AT R4 H o @ B S5 £ B AT At the end of each reporting period, the Company
THESRBHKN  MERRHEAT > assesses the prospects and financial position of its
%fiﬁxs.:.ﬁ&ﬂﬂ@ﬁﬂ% FIBE TR B subsidiaries, on an individual basis, as to whether
NE Y FRER /UMEJEH BEATABEHE there is any indication of impairment of its interests in
HKABEREESR subsidiaries or any impairment loss previously recognised

BRAR+TZEARNEE 2 EBRHE AR R
$£3,000,000% 7t (=& ——4 : 3,000,000
B MBARRRE#HAEERR &
ENEERTERY ZREZRmAE®R
H“Wﬁﬁ cEERA KRLusE
G B RAE 2 B T EERSHHRE
+TZEAREE MR BHKRERAT A
ERB o

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012

for subsidiaries in prior years may no longer exist or may
need to be adjusted accordingly.

Except for amounts due from subsidiaries of
HK$3,000,000 (2011: HK$3,000,000) which are repayable
within twelve months, the balances with subsidiaries
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the balances
with subsidiaries are not repayable within twelve months
from the end of the reporting period except for the
amounts aforementioned and are therefore shown in the
statement of financial position as non-current.
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17. KB ATREEZE (8)
TEMBARAZHEMT

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

FAFEEREZ
B
Percentage of

HEMRIL
8 MR AL R

ERTEBERRE
HMRAEE

Nominal value of

TEEHR

Place of incorporation/

issued ordinary/

equity attributable

Name registration and operations registered share capital to the Company Principal activities
HE [SF:3
Direct Indirect
EEMREEXARAF S 1007 7T — 100 ®REZER
Concept Technology Industries Hong Kong HK$100 Investment holding
Limited
Favourable Outcome Limited* REREZES 1%7T — 100 ®EER
British Virgin Islands (“BVI") us$1 Investment holding
REBRGSHNEFERAFO REARKME 65,000,0007%8 7T — 100 RARHEETEM
Global Asia High-tech Electronics (TRE]) /& HK$65,000,000 Manufacture and trading of
Co., Ltd. The People’s Republic of electronic products
China (The "PRC")/
Mainland China
Group Sense (China) Limited* REREZES 1%7T 100 — BREER
BVI us$1 Investment holding
Group Sense (Dongguan) Limited*  HEBE XS/ FH 10% 7T — 100 HEVE
BVI/Mainland China us$10 Property holding
Group Sense (Holding) Limited* RERZES 3,000% T 100 — BREER
BVI US$3,000 Investment holding
Group Sense (S.E.A.) Limited* RBRIES 1% 100 — REER
BVI us$1 Investment holding
BEHBHNERAF [-£H 100% 7T 100 — REEZR
Group Sense Cyberspace Limited* Samoa Us$100 Investment holding
BREFRRA b LA A%1,000%8 T — 100 Rt RHEEEFEM
Group Sense Limited Hong Kong BRERFSAERIER Design and trading of
200,000/ L@ electronic products
Ordinary shares
HK$1,000
Non-voting 5%
deferred shares
HK$200,000?
Group Sense Manufactory KBRZHES/TH 1%7T — 100 RHEFERMIRSE
Company Limited BVI/Mainland China us$1 Provision of subcontracting

EE (BB)ERAF

services for electronic
products

2012 A F | &
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17. B AT =R (E) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

HEMEL BRAEERKE FAAEGEREZ
8 AR R AR B dMBRAEE BAk ETRER

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Percentage of

Place of incorporation/ equity attributable

106

Name registration and operations registered share capital to the Company Principal activities
HE %
Direct Indirect
REHEBRRA BE 28T — 100 REZERK
Group Sense Manufactory Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
Company Limited
REBHREERAR BE 28T — 9895 R LHEEEFEM
Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Design and trading of
electronic products
HEPDAZRAER QA HEHRS @ M2,115,837E T 98.95 — REER
Group Sense PDA Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands AEEER17,182%E T Investment holding
Ordinary shares
US$2,115,837
Series A preferred
shares US$17,182
HEZELEREBERAA o 1007 7T — 98.95 REtRHEEEFEM
Group Sense PDA Limited Hong Kong HK$100 Design and trading of
electronic products
BEEHRR(EB)FRARA EE 10078 7T — 100 ®REZEK
Group Sense Software Technology Hong Kong HK$100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
Rk JILTEA* EFN 60,000,000 [ — 100 R RHEEETFEMR
Kabushiki Kaisha Group Sense* Japan JPY60,000,000 Design and trading of
electronic products
Supreme Style Technology Limited* HEE X & & [E — 100 REZERK
BVI Us$100 Investment holding
BRARABLAEREERAA FE/HE A K #50,000,000 — 519 REARHEEBEFERREM
(MA@ O* The PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Design and trading of

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012
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17.

18.

B AR RE % () 17.

M EE
(1) ZHNVERE]

() BEERMY EMARERREAEERRAR
AEMBRRAGZBEXHEEMRRRE
KRAGEREZHEMN TEREERRZ
BEMDIK

() PHERIZFIIEERE-

(4) HE-Z——F=ZA=+—HLEEER " HE
AR ETL B 19% A% 19 1 5 o

* ARBERRKEAMEBAREMR ARG
B 25 7% P B B K B P % o

R EZARYAEB I AFEES
BEAFEXIERAEEEEFEZE
MzHBAR - EERA - REEMHE
RAZHABHERERBR TR -

HEEZHEEER 18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:
(1 Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise.

(2) The deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of
the company or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

(3) Sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the PRC.

(4) During the year ended 31 March 2012, 19% equity interest of
KB was disposed.

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

rEME

Group
—F-=F =%
2012 2011
FHERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIEEEFE Share of net assets 1,387 964
e B v 2 Goodwill on acquisition 6,680 6,680
8,067 7,644

JE Wy — 2k A ¥ Amount due from a

EREREX jointly-controlled entity 7,477 10,626
WA Less: Impairment? (3,200) (1,600)
12,344 16,670
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HEEZESNEEEDS(E) 18.

el —HEZEHERERRTBENHRIE
%IJE’%;EE“ o i%ﬂffﬁﬁ % B R EEE
B -BEERA ARZHERBZE
BT EEREHRET _EAREE -
BREATHMRARAINBIERS

# HRAAEEB T —HAREHEBHESES
B8 M BERE E7,477,00078 7T CRINERIR
fﬁ}éﬂéﬁ%)(:%*fi : 10,626,000%7%)2%
W — RS EEIERERRE -

P Mg — £ F) 2 55 5 B8 B AL 121 2

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

The amount due from a jointly-controlled entity included
in interests in jointly-controlled entities is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the
opinion of the directors, the balance with the jointly-
controlled entity is not repayable within twelve months
from the end of the reporting period and is therefore
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position
as non-current.

# An impairment was recognised for the amount due from a jointly-
controlled entity with a carrying amount of HK$7,477,000 (before
deducting the impairment loss) (2011: HK$10,626,000) because
this jointly-controlled entity of the Group has been making loss
persistently.

The movements in the provision for impairment of

;T amounts due from a jointly-controlled entity are as
follows:
AEH
Group
—E-—F —E——F
2012 201
TET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R E ) At the beginning of year 1,600 —
ERRRESE Impairment loss recognised 1,600 1,600
RE R At the end of year 3,200 1,600

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012
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18. HEEHEREER(E) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED

ENTITIES (continued)

KAEHERZHEDT

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as follows:

FHERT =EMRYL/ Gk
g BpHE T FrEEES RRE PR ETEER
Particulars  Place of Percentage of
of issued incorporation/  Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held  registration interest power sharing  Principal activities
HERMBRBERRAA 700,000 7T &HE 35 35 35 HE - RFAREERAKM
Neoplatec Technology Company Limited EHER
HK$700,000 Hong Kong Manufacture, design and
trading of in-mould
technology related
products
BENGRERXBERLT AR#5,401,550  HE 19.78 20 1978 HERHEETEERSM
(TEEFHE])
Chongging New Standard Medical RMB5,401,550  The PRC Manufacture and trading

of electronic medical
appliances

Equipment Co., Ltd. (“Chongging New
Standard"”)

Pt KRE G EEE R ARA FEER
ﬁo

The above interests in jointly-controlled entities are
indirectly held by the Company.

EENBERMBRR CMBRFEAT A=
T—HAREFHA - AREZMBHMERTIR
BEZHAREHNERR -A—RE=A=1
—AMEZEARZEHHE -

The financial statements of Chongging New Standard
have the financial year end of 31 December. The Group's
financial statements are adjusted for the material
transactions of this jointly-controlled entity between 1
January and 31 March.

TRH7AZAEEHLRZEH BB HER

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

WE information of the Group's jointly-controlled entities:
—g-=f %
2012 2011
FHERT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BiEAREHER 2 Share of the jointly-controlled
BERAE: entities’ assets and liabilities:
REEE Current assets 1,676 1,073
EMBEE Non-current assets 877 1,055
mE B E Current liabilities (1,166) (1,164)
BEFE Net assets 1,387 964
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18. HEIEZEHIERER(E) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)
TERHFAZAEBARTH EEVTBER The following table illustrates the summarised financial
M information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities:
—F-=F —F——F
2012 2011
FE T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
J& 1 K [R] 42 Share of the jointly-controlled entities’
B XA results:
LN Revenue 1,584 389
NN Other income 10 46
1,594 435
S bhaazE Total expenses (1,171) (935)
Fgusd (BE) Profit/(loss) after tax 423 (500)
19. Bt&E AR E = 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
KEHE
Group
—E-—fF —E——%F
2012 2011
FHET FE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EIEEEFE Share of net assets — —
JiE Ui Bt R B BR 5K Amounts due from associates 10,788 10,803
B OREY Less: Impairment? (9,365) (9,350)
1,423 1,453

JE U Bt % A B) BR 701,423,000 7T (& —
— % 1,453,000/ ) Ih B IE R A £ BR
BEET AEEF RENREBRTER

HY o

repayment.

The amounts due from associates of HK$1,423,000 (2011:
HK$1,453,000), included in the Group’s current assets,
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

18 B Bk BR E{E10,788,000/%8 jT (R M BR R
EEER)(=Z——4:10,803,000# L) 2 f&
g B & 2 B IR SR EE RROR(E

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012

MALSEAEEBTZBEARBRESE #

An impairment was recognised for the amounts due from
associates with a carrying amount of HK$10,788,000 (before
deducting the impairment loss) (2011: HK$10,803,000) because
these associates of the Group have been making loss persistently.
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19.

BeEANTER(E) 19.
WS N RABERE 2 EESHWNT

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of

amounts due from associates are as follows:

rER
Group
—B-C—fF —ET-—F
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REH] At the beginning of year 9,350 9,335
& H &7 Exchange realignment 15 15
RE# At the end of year 9,365 9,350

FEBERRZFBUOT:

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

e =EMRY xEBEGRE
=r: R 13 F 15 HEftE EEZcAIL FTEXK
Percentage of
ownership
Particulars Place of interest
of issued incorporation/ attributable
Name shares held registration to the Group Principal activities
HMBBEREERAF(THR]) - 3,500/ 7T S 35 THERAERHEE
ACME Tech Precision Moulds Limited HK$3,500 Hong Kong Manufacture and trading of
("ACME")* moulds
B R EERAR(MeME R 45,0007 7T S 45 fmET
Sinocard Technology Limited (“Sinocard”) HK$45,000 Hong Kong Inactive
* REBEBELTKETMEBAE M T KEF * Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or another member
B SE S PTBIRR B B FT & 4% © firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

EREJEZRREAKEZAFEE

iiﬁij( CESERAEREEFET
MOZBERR - EFERS - REHHEAM

BERRNFBEREHERNBRIIE -

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

EE(BB)EBERAT 2012 @ FH &
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19.

BENT R (E)

AEBEHEA B EREIE  HEHAR
A—2EMBARRAE ZBAERAK

AARELLESEHEARBIEBARERR
B ARED  WMAEEEKRIEERERE
HERREMNE REE - NEBRERE
HEERRREAFERENER=ZE—ZF
—A=+—HZR&F 2 EE 5 A765000
BIL(ZE——F  FmF446,1828 1) &
4,846,000 70 (=& — —4 : 5,558,240/8
JT) °

TRAAMNEEERAZASEERE R
AFBEEMBRE:

19.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The Group's shareholdings in the associates all comprise
equity shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of losses of ACME and Sinocard because the share of
losses of these associates exceeded the Group's interests
in the associates. The Group's unrecognised share of
profit of these associates for the current year and
their accumulated losses at 31 March 2012 amounted
to HK$765,000 (2011: net profit of HK$446,182) and
HK$4,846,000 (2011: HK$5,558,240), respectively.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s associates extracted from their
management accounts:

—E-—F —E——F

2012 2011

T#ET FE T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Assets 8,206 5,606
A& Liabilities (17,689) (18,333)
LON Revenue 7,250 7,665
KF Z i A Profit for the year 1,779 1,001

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012
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20. A HERE

21.

22,

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

# % E
Group

—F-=F —F——F

2012 2011

TET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

WA ZIELETIRAIZE  Unlisted equity investments, at cost 48,218 48,153
o ORE Less: Impairment* (10,000) (10,000)
38,218 38,153
# MR E R RME - HE stBRMEE32,055,000 # An impairment was recognised for an unlisted investment

BRI BRHEBENCZT — — F:
32,055,000 7T) 2 —FF LR E B RIRME °
RARFERRET EEH (T ——F &) -

with a carrying amount of HK$32,055,000 (before deducting
the impairment loss) (2011: HK$32,055,000) due to the non-
performance of the investment. There was no movement in the
impairment during the year (2011: Nil).

i EREIELMRAETESFEE - Hi5 The above investments consist of investments in unlisted

EERAHHERE -

REES

equity securities which were designated as available-for-
sale investments.

21. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

EEMBEBABHARE HiZeFH 22 None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The

BB EET I B R

financial assets relate to deposits for which there was no
recent history of default.

7E 22. INVENTORIES

rEH

Group
—E——F —ET——F
2012 2011
THE T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 55,046 76,859
EER Work in progress 8,328 14,054
2K Gh Finished goods 13,993 25,150
77,367 116,063

EE(BB)BERAT 2012 @ F3H &
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23. EWE R 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES
#
Group
—E-—fF —E——%F
2012 2011
TET FAEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BUNE SR Trade receivables 75,306 97,557
B Impairment (15,666) (7133)
59,640 90,424

AEEHREREFZESFEUEERAE
1T R — N T60EIK - BEE
PEBEREEREE - AEBEBE KM FYH
ﬁﬁHaHZFEHﬁZmIEL’_JET%T H 3 B

EEER

BFERE SREEEEHE

Fs‘ﬁﬁHHZﬁ%ﬁﬁ © BUE S IRATEHAE -

1DEH PR Eaiiﬁ'%;%%

AT RERES KRR

B9 B 5E42 ©

VAR 3R 2B B &

1 B # 815,666,00008 T (—F — — 4
7,133,000/8 70) 18 2 F RE AT E M WS BB

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period is generally 60 to 90 days.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade
receivables are interest-free. Please refer to note 42 for

details of credit risk management.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the payment due
dates and net of provisions of HK$15,666,000 (2011:

RZERER DT HK$7,133,000), is as follows:

rEHE

Group
—E——F —ET——F
2012 2011
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0ZE60X 0-60 days 56,203 74,394
61290k 61-90 days 267 1,913
B0k Over 90 days 3,170 14,117
59,640 90,424

Group Sense (International) Limited

Annual Report 2012
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23. EWE SR (E)

EWBZRFBERBEZESHOT:

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the provisions for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

rEH

Group
—E-C—F —E——%F
2012 2011
THET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REH] At the beginning of year 7,133 15,739
BB 8 1B 1 AR (P 7 6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 8,428 —
A A\ 4 B T Bk 2 BR X Amount written off as uncollectible — (8,706)
bE H 5 5 Exchange realigment 105 100
REK At the end of year 15,666 7,133

i A B BR BB A B B R E B AR
BRI E 5 8R15,666,0008 L (—F——
F 7,133,000/ 7T) E AR {& 416,093,000
BT (ZF — —F:11,642,0005 7T) © &
Bl 48 8 B FE B 5 BR 30 B 4 R SE AR
AR FAEEATWRELEREKERZ—
B o AEEVWES LS EBRIFFE MK
AR EMEEER -

WEBEMNKARBRATHEZ BEE
PR R DM

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$15,666,000 (2011: HK$7,133,000)
with a gross carrying amount of HK$16,093,000
(2011: HK$11,642,000). The individually impaired trade
receivables relate to customers that were in default
or delinquent in payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is

as follows:

rEH

Group
—E-—F —E——%F
2012 20M
FEx FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
N8 HA 3 M OR (A Neither past due nor impaired 45,811 72,500
BH—Z=mE A 1 to 2 months past due 10,046 228
BEAWZE =@ A 2 to 3 months past due 267 1,290
BEAE B =@ A Over 3 months past due 3,089 11,897
59,213 85,915
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23. BRRWEZRMR(E)

R 48 5 3 75 R O (B 2 PR MRBR BKB X KHE
DR E P B B R

EEMERERECEREERABRASES
ERHERFNEP - REBELE AR
AEFERA ARGEERIEETANR
g WRAERIDAI2HRKRE - BEER
S E R BERE - NEE L Eptit
ERBPFACMEMRAEMBEREES -

RS — AKEEFERADT

23.

24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES — GROUP AND COMPANY

AEH FIN/N|

Group Company
—F—-F ZF—F ZF-=F ZF——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
FHE T FHT FE T FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TE A BOIE Prepayments 7,607 8,870 213 200
Z& Deposits 2,847 3,307 — —
H b JE WER 5K Other receivables 37,101 38,214 — —
B Impairment (5,082) — — —
42,473 50,391 213 200

ReBESHMIRE- - RERBREEMD
EW AR KB R -

bl R R OBR SRR (E B R B R E B S
BB L b JIE UK BR 305,082,000 7T (=& —
— & &) HRMEE A5,082,0008 T (=%
— — % 15,010,000 L) © A% B I & 3t
I EE BB AT AR R H A (s T

o

Bk

H AR E A W AR KB S B i SR B K B R
AMET BRI EHARCIZBILAL »
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None of the deposits is either past due or impaired. The
provision for impairment relates to other receivables.

Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables is a provision for an impaired other receivable
of HK$5,082,000 (2011: Nil) with a carrying amount of
HK$5,082,000 (2011: HK$5,010,000). The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
this balance.

The remaining balance of other receivables are neither
past due nor impaired and relates to a large number
of independent parties for whom there was no recent
history of default.
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5. BN ERXRABZRZRE 25

26.

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

AEE
Group
—E-——F —E——%F
2012 2011
FHT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
SEEM{EHES - #AF(E Unlisted debt security, at fair value
—EHWBEETERNZAE  — Debenture with fixed interest rate
S55%EEHAAE T — of 5.5% per annum with maturity
MEFEMA=+/\H date on 28 April 2014 8,261 8,450
YR E——FRE——F=A=+ The above unlisted debt securities at 31 March 2012 and

*EIZ%FLME% OB BRI

HHTF

BAFERABaRZIBREZAFENK
RBEHMREERBEREZIZE ARE
BE -

//

&

2011 were classified as held for trading.

The fair values of investments at fair value through profit
or loss are determined based on the quoted bid prices at
the close of business at the end of the reporting period.

fTE€mIT A 26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
rEE
Group
—E——f —E——F
2012 2011
BE af& BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
THET FAET TET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
RAINES D Forward currency contracts — — 227 —

EHINES D2 REERELATEMR -
ERFRITESRIAZRS  HERRE
PITETL -

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are
the same as their fair values. The above transactions
involving derivative financial instruments are transacted
with China Merchant Bank Co., Ltd.

EE(BB)BERAT 2012 @ F3H &
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26.

27.

TEEMIAGE)

AEFFY FilRBINESGL - UEIE
HEXRRAR HITFEE P L
G -HE_Z——F=A=+—HLHF
Eo R EEETETEZAFES
U 25291,0008 TEFTABZA ©

BERhBE&EEHER

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

The Group has entered into the above forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures which
did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. For the
year ended 31 March 2011, changes in the fair value of
non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to a gain of
HK$291,000 were credited to profit or loss.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

rEHE AT
Group Company
—E-——F —E——F ZEBE-——F —ET——%
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FAET FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
He&MIRITHE S Cash and bank balances 101,147 132,537 203 199
TE B TF 3K Time deposits 37,843 31,363 — —
He kRe Cash and cash
ZLEIEE equivalents 138,990 163,900 203 199

RBEBAR - AEEBUARE(TARE]D
FrEZRe RREFEIEER R42,496,000
BT (ZZF——4F 121,144,000 L) - AR
BASERELBAEMER - AAm - BRI
RSN B IR R A TE - BE RN EE
BHRE TEEEEEBERENNSEE
HEBHNRTHARBHBRAEMER -

RITRSDHRBRITBABTERNEZ
FENEREBAE - RFARBEANEFR S
FX - EHEMERZHARTIR - N F—
AR=ZEATTEF  LiEEAZEHERF
AARFREK B - |RITERFRNARLF
ERBRB I RN KL ERHIRT
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At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
cash equivalents of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$42,496,000 (2011:
HK$21,144,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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28. ENEZRARENERE

AT RERNE SRR R ENRIRANKE
HBEFEMRBENRZRE DN

28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the payment due
dates, is as follows:

REHE

Group
—B-=F —F—F
2012 201
THET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
0£E60X 0-60 days 36,845 36,240
61290K 61-90 days 746 109
HBiEI0K Over 90 days 2,075 2,205
39,666 38,554

FEN B 5 RMERMAFE - B—RN60

KEEH -
29, HtENBBRAREGTER

HiENEALEFAELETES BB
BRERERE -

30. Y ERITEE

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 60-day terms.

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals are interest-free and
repayable on demand.

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING

—E--F —E——%F
2012 201
rER REH
Group Group
B A= i
(%) THERT (%) FAET
Effective Effective
Interest rate Interest rate
(%) HK$'000 (%) HK$'000
& Current
IRITEE - FILW Bank borrowing, unsecured
WER—FR and repayable within
EE one year 2.9 20,000 — —

EE(BB)BERAT 2012 @ F3H &
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M ERITEE(E)

A—E——"F=A=+—H ARFHK
£ F A #55,000,000 0 (ZF — — 4 :
40,000,000/ 7T) Z SR ITE IR IER -

RZTE——FZA=+—H8 AEEZR
7718 & 520,000,000 o (=& — — F:
/) AEBECRTEERUEILAE
BRFTIEEBRITRAERSEMER R
25%ET B2 EEEE -

i 3iE Bi 1]

TEBERBMEBRTBARBEABEAE
245,482,000 7T (=& ——4F : 201,679,000
WIS EE - WrlHER AEEE
FEBEENARARKERTEF o K
EE IR PR E£52,071,0008 T (=T —
—4%F : 43,553,000 70) MR IS &1 - W]
RAR—ZERFARBERKRERTBF ©
At BE AR eBE —REEERABHE
ABRNTEABELEHRB AR U A
ZRIEEE  WBHZEEmMS - WARE
RELEMRIBEE °

REBEFEARKNBEEMBERE R
FEKZZIECERINEREETIR
Z BB ABE0% R - RERED

“ETN\F-A-HELER LEAR
TETALFE+ AT HZREAZR
oo WP BEEIEREEMBRIEE B R
ZBERI AR B - R ARBEEHRE
BB -BAKEMS  BRKRER/5% -
it - AEBEARN PR Z KB AR
R-ZETENF-A-—HURELE ZBN A
DR BN

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING

31.

(continued)

The Company has guaranteed the Group’s bank
borrowing amount to HK$55,000,000 (2011:
HK$40,000,000) as at 31 March 2012.

The Group’s bank borrowing is HK$20,000,000 (2011:
Nil) as at 31 March 2012. The Group’s bank borrowing
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured, carried
interest at HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum and short term
in nature.

DEFERRED TAX

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong before IRD
assessment of HK$245,482,000 (2011: HK$201,679,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China
of HK$52,071,000 (2011: HK$43,553,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised by these
subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
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31.

32.

i GE B R (48 ) 31. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
RZE——F=A=1+—H KEBTE At 31 March 2012, no deferred tax has been recognised
MRAPBEKY 2B AR ~ BE AR Rk for withholding dividend taxes that would be payable on
B2 6 E 58 B R EE BT M EE 2 A the unremitted earnings, that are subject to withholding
R B E AP EREMIELERE - EFR dividend taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries, associates,
B LEWB AT - BE QR R HERE and jointly-controlled entities established in Mainland
BEREARRKIKRAIEDIKILEREFT - China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
REEBR - AERPEEMNE QR RH that these subsidiaries, associates and jointly-controlled
FIEHIERINE W RBEAERERE entities will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
B(ZE——F:\)- future. There was no significant temporary difference
associated with investments in subsidiaries and jointly-
controlled entities in Mainland China at the end of the
reporting period (2011: Nil).
RARMERRE TR S EH BTG There are no income tax consequences attaching
MiER - to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
MR A< 32. SHARE CAPITAL
—E—C—fF —E——%F
2012 2011
FEx FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERE Authorised:
3,000,000,000 (=ZF——% : 3,000,000,000 (2011:
3,000,000,000) % & &E{E  3,000,000,000) ordinary
0.10/8 T & i I% shares of HK$0.10 each 300,000 300,000
EEITREE: Issued and fully paid:
1,197,663,029 (=& ——%:  1,197,663,029 (2011
1,197,663,029) & & % E & 1,197,663,029) ordinary
0108 T &% shares of HK$0.10 each 119,766 119,766
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BEARREE

ARBEABLEABESB(FED 5
ERE - R RRBERAEERMERN
HEMNEFLEZERMZAERZEE - 5
2 BER2EERFEARRAZESR(E
RBUFHTESR) AKEZHMESR
ASPRBE  AEEEBIERAEE
BEBBHEZAL - FER-_ZET_FN
A BB R N (BRIE A H A 77 S0 RE S =X
ERTRMERIR) BEZ A BMAER  ERHR
TF -

REFEEMNEESTRERTEZES
REEZBNOEE  THEBULFELR
BRIEEITERRARTERFREEHTR
0210% ° S EFHZARERZEENE
m12E A HREERECRREMA T EITZ
BDEE - REINRARREAREDET
B AR 2 1% o {E {71 8 i IR I &Y 12 5T 38 A
ME—FPREARBRRASE SRR
JfE

MARNARZES & TBABREER
RABFEAMzBEATERDELERR
BNBREARNGBIIERITESELL
AE o LA o i AT AT 121 B ER A 1A AR F)
JEEREXNBIERATEETLAFERSS
BBBALEREEARBREMZEIT R
HDHEBBARARREMEMERTRGZ
0.1% 3% B @ 1% {7 2 42 {8 8 #5,000,000/%8
TR HERARQRBRMER)  AIFL
AERRERRARNE EHE -

BTAREER TEREF21EEEXER
BNEEARRESHIBTZREANRE
NEMmELRBRE CROIELRBAE
MITEMIHESFRE  BREREHE
‘HABINESTREATERESIEMA
ZHHIHER -

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating, attracting and
retaining eligible participants whose contribution are vital
to the long term growth and profitability of the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors,
other employees or officers of the Group, advisers or
consultants of the Group, or any person that have
business relationship with the Group. The Scheme was
adopted on 2 April 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 business days from the date of offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by
the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which
is determinable by the directors and is not later than the
expiry date of the Scheme.
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33. BARIRESE(E)

BABBEZITEEDHESRE  ES
AERTIFNRSENARA RN ER
SRR T E R PIAME UK T
B ()ARRBRNEBLRRERTEH
A58 22 7 B 7 B 52 P P 8 2 P U T (B
R (i) AR AR AR M E (B

BARBBYRAETHAARNRE K
REREBZLREZEN -

RAFER - RIFHE T 5B TR I K
RITEE:

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer, and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

—2-=F —EF—F
2012 201

hn#E 19 AR N F13 I HE
TEE A TEE A

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price  of options exercise price  of options
BT E R T BLER FH
HK$ per share ‘000 HK$ per share ‘000
RE ) At the beginning of year 0.584 8,265 0.569 17,280
FRE I Forfeited during the year 0.584 (335) 0.582 (590)
FARKRM Lapsed during the year 0.584 (7,930) 0.554 (8,425)
REF 4R At the end of year — — 0.584 8,265

EE(BB)BERAT 2012 @ F3H &
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33. BARIRESE(E) 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

RARERN - RIBFTE - BERREZE The movements of the outstanding share options under
ER UNNE the Scheme during the year are as follows:
AREHE
Number of share options
» i BEAREZ
—E-—f —E--% BERR#E TES BERREZ RELXRRE
mA =R zZEBHEH* (BEEEMA) TE/E> REAE
—B FARY FATE FARK FAL® =+-8 (B.R.5%) (B.5.%) BrTER BRER
Exercise periods
Dates of grant of share options Exercise prices At grant
Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed At 31 of share (both dates of share dates of share
SHRERE Names or categories At 1 April during the during the during the during the March options* inclusive) options** HK$ options*** HK$
B2 of participants 2011 year year year year 2012 (DD.MM.YYYY) (DD.MM.YYYY) per share per share
= Directors
08.08.2008 to
RAME Kazuhiro Otani 800,000 — — —  (800,000) — 13.09.2007 05.08.2011 0.584 0.495
08.08.2008 to
a1 Lee Koon Hung 800,000 — — —  (800,000) — 13.09.2007 05.08.2011 0.584 0.495
Fok Ting Yeung, 08.08.2008 to
EEF James 400,000 — — — (400,000 — 13.09.2007 05.08.2011 0.584 0.495
08.08.2008 to
ERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith 800,000 — — —  (800,000) — 13.09.2007 05.08.2011 0.584 0.495
2,800,000 — — — (2,800,000) —
Hity Others
08.08.2008 to
(3= Employees 5,465,000 — — (335,000) (5,130,000) — 13.09.2007 05.08.2011 0.584 0.495
5,465,000 — — (335,000) (5,130,000) —
A&t Total 8,265,000 — — (335,000) (7,930,000) —
RAF R ARIT B LRI E BRI Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding during the year:
* BARBEZEBHERLABESITED * The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant
FIEEFIE © until the commencement of the exercise period.
o BERBME 2ITHRERAIEAMBRRARIET x The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
ZHABYAARRRRAZ EMBUES 2 HE - in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.
ko REBERBRERLBEABKBEZARARE ***  The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the date of
DEZEARBREREAHH-—EZZAR grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price
Rz TE - on the trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of the
options.
NBAEEEANRLE Z2ELRRED 25 All share options granted in prior years have been fully
B o Ejziﬁéf%—:&f}?——izﬂ = vested and no further share option expense is recognised
T—HIEFEA - jtiﬁ%ﬁﬁ&%%%ﬁﬁ HME R during the year ended 31 March 2012 and 2011. No
[T - &HE-Z = share option was granted during the year ended 31
R=+—BLEFERN - ﬂe&ﬁ@fﬂaw March 2012 and 2011.
o
WER  ARBBREFE W ERITEE At the end of the reporting period, no share options of
SRR E o the Company outstanding under the Scheme.
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34. RESERVES

@ =X®£HE (@  Group
REEBRAFERBAFE 2HB The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
CHENMHEEH 2N B REKFEL movements therein for the current and prior years
B eBmE8HRA - are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 40 of the financial
statements.
KEBEREEBEERE-— L= The Group's special reserve represents the
FARAQNAZBRMD EMATFT#EITZ AR difference between the nominal value of the shares
SEEAMBB2MBRATRMDZ of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
HE AXBLEERMMEBEITZR reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company's
NEIROEBEZEZE - shares in 1993, and over the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.
(b) ZAADFE] (b)  Company
REEERF BEIRE
REER BARHK & & RitER k]
Share Capital Share
premium Contributed redemption option Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve losses Total
=S FHET FHET FET FET FHET FHET
Note  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
R-T—ZHFMA—8  At1 April 2010 409,710 21,976 419 2,856 (60,555) 374,406
AFEEXHEBEER Total comprehensive
loss for the year " — — — — (21,496) (21,496)
WZZE——F=A=+—H At 31 March 2011 and
R-Z——£mA—H 1 Aprl 2011 409,710 21,976 419 2,856 (82,051) 352,910
AEEXHEHBEES Total comprehensive loss
for the year " — — — (62,209) (62,209)
BRI RUE SERERHE  Transfer of share option
BB BERBREFFE  reserve upon the lapse/
forfeiture of share options — — — (2,856) 2,856 —
A S At 31 March 2012
=A=+—8 409,710 21,976 419 —  (141,404) 290,701
KRB ZWARBBERE-—TLNL= The Company’s contributed surplus represents

FARRNRZERH ETATETZ S
EEAMBBZHNBRAKRMDZA
FTEBOAARBEZERMHMEITZ
ARABBRHEBEZED - RIEBER
ENRIA1981 0 —REIARAIEET
BRT  UBAEBEANZ FER
HKBEHDIR °

the excess of the fair value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1993, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, a
company may make distributions to its members out
of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.
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35. MEBEERERNFE
FEHRERS

(i) ( E-F——F=A=1+—HIEFE
A K%.EH#']607000/%TEZ}E\

IR - e R EAMmERERE
TEEIR -
iy BE_T——F=ZA=+—HILLF

ER - AREEPE #52,353,0008 7T 2
EHEZcEBREHIEERE -

(il HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIF
ER - AEEB 1 E(E4,600,000%
T2 HERERIEIMNEMNBIRK -

36. AAREE

@ HBHE-_ZTENF-ZA=+-—HLLHF
ER - —BuLREEER(TREAD
EEBAZRAEE—KBRAR ([1#
EADREFD AEEARR—
% 5 #627,5713 JU (44,895,000
T2 EH REABEBESEAER

—mBEAE-_ZTENFE+_-_A=H
2R (ZBE])  KBEREZR
FARTZBRD - Bt - WEAMN
AZRREARERER  TIEE
FEENERZMZE KB RTEFA
BHZMETRTE ZMAERB R
HHEZER- - At 5 ARRE
ARERBEZR  BRREARESZ
E B EEE100,000F T U NMETF
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35.

36.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group
has transferred HK$1,607,000 from prepayments,
deposits and other receivables to construction in
progress.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group
has transferred HK$2,353,000 from long term
deposit to available-for-sale investments.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group
had Tax Reserve Certificate valued HK$4,600,000
which was used to settle tax payable.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

@

During the year ended 31 March 2008, an
independent service provider (the “Plaintiff”)
issued a legal proceeding in Hong Kong against
a subsidiary of the Group (the “Defendant”)
and a claim against the Defendant for a sum of
US$627,571 (approximately HK$4,895,000). The
Plaintiff alleged that the Defendant was in breach
of a service agreement dated 3 December 2004
(the “Agreement”) and failed to make payments
in accordance with the Agreement (the “Claim”).
In this connection, the Defendant also filed a
claim against the Plaintiff and alleged that the
Plaintiff was in breach of the Agreement in failing
to design and develop the products in substantial
conformance to the functional specification
as defined in the Agreement. Accordingly, the
Defendant made a counterclaim against the Plaintiff
for liquidated damages in the sum of US$100,000
and other damages to be assessed together with
interests and costs (the “Counterclaim”).
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(&)
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(@

(Continued)

Based on the available evidence and subject to
discovery and expert evidence, the Defendant’s
representing solicitor considered that there were
valid defences to the Claim and the Defendant had
a good chance of success in the Claim and the
Counterclaim. During the year, there was no further
progress noted in these Claim and Counterclaim.
Having considered the positive legal opinion and
there is no further progress in these Claim and
Counterclaim during the year, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision is
required to be made (2011: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, details of other

KABEFBEOAT: contingent liabilities in the financial statements
were as follows:
rEE rEE
Group Company
—E—F —F——F 8- —FT——F
2012 201N 2012 20M
FET FAT TERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TMAEBERE T Guarantees given to banks
fHAEMmM4 T in connection with
RITZ R facilities granted to:
N=PNG| Subsidiaries — — 149,000 82,353
A HE Available-for-sale
wE investments 7,755 — — —
7,755 — 149,000 82,353
R-E——F=ZA=+—H8"7AH As at 31 March 2012, the banking facilities

RAGBETFHRITHWERMER T2
RITHE AR E & A A20,000,000/8 7T

—E——F ) MARAEEE
RMé TAHEEERE ZRITHER
S8 M A7,7550008 T (- ——
Fo4E) o

granted to the subsidiaries subject to guarantees
given to the banks by the Company were utilised
to HK$20,000,000 (2011: Nil), and the banking
facilities guaranteed by the Group to available-for-
sale investments were utilised to HK$7,755,000
(2011: Nil).

EE(BB)BERAT 2012 @ F3H &
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37. REMEZH 37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
AEBREKEHEZHBRAEE TS The Group leases certain of its office premises and staff
FTEYERETIRE MECLHEETE quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
By —&E2=+%F - properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to

twenty years.

RZE—=—F=A=+—H AEEXE At 31 March 2012, the Group had total future minimum
TAIBUE 2 &2 ER KRR & D ERE lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
TRE RHERERAFENT falling due as follows:
AEHE
Group
—E-—F —E——F
2012 201
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—% R Within one year 8,739 6,374
RE_FEFRF In the second to fifth years,
(BEERMF) inclusive 15,223 12,571
A B T After five years 1,940 4,683
25,902 23,628
AEREHIR » A AT ET M E A LEHA At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
EZHE - significant operating lease arrangements.
38. RIE 38. COMMITMENTS
B FXCHisE37 7 REBELHESIFIN 0 A In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
EFRRBEHRITE T ERAE: in note 37 above, the Group had the following capital

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

rEH
Group
—E——F —ET——F
2012 2011
FExT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEETH B R VE# A - Contracted, but not provided for:
FEITEFREZ Capital contributions payable in
JEfHH & % investment in unlisted securities 1,205 1177
W - BEREH Property, plant and equipment 11,426 20,225
RIREHIR » A AT EE A E REE(Z At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
T——F: | o significant commitments (2011: Nil).
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3. BEAEIRS

(a

BR 1E 1t 35 B 765 ¥ % L t F 8 Al 9

R0 RAFER  XEEE T
EXEEALRS:

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties
during the year:

RE
Group
—E——F —E——F
2012 2011
M 5 T#E T FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MK & & — B & 2 5 Royalty expense charged by
WE 2 AR an associate of the Group (i) 1,582 4,187
M — Bt A a8 2 Purchases of products from
W an associate (ii) 2,849 5,032
B 5 Notes:
(i) FARIERREAEE —HEBAF (i) The royalty expense was calculated based on the number

(if)

RAFAMBEENE LEFERNE
EifatEHR - MEKS HH R B2
NG AN NG N RV A L )
A e

ABERBBE 2GR ERE
RAGTEIBEEPZ ARBREE
e & o

of electronic handheld products sold by a subsidiary of
the Group during the year with the terms as stipulated
in the royalty agreement between the associate and that
subsidiary.

(i) The purchases from an associate were made according
to the published prices and conditions offered by the
associate to its major customers.

TEEFTZEREASRM: (b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:
—E——F —ET——F
2012 2011
FHET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HHEBRET Short term employee benefits 13,834 13,747
RARET B K Pension scheme contributions 462 463
XNFEEBAEZ Total compensation paid to key
g management personnel 14,296 14,210

EEHeE—SHFRBARPHHRERME

8 o

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 8 to the financial statements.

EE(BB)EBERAT 2012 @ FH &
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40. RERE S z2EMIA 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
ZEENeBIANBRERRZEFKEEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
D financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

—E——fF AEH
2012 Group
cRMEE Financial assets
BATERA
BRKR2Z
EWMEE BERR o] fit &
— BEEE FE U BR X ERMEE 5t

Financial assets
at fair value
through profit

or loss Available-for-
— held Loans and sale financial
for trading receivables assets Total
TEx FTER FTERT FTER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AHEHERE Available-for-sale investments — — 38,218 38,218
YRR 2 Financial assets included in
TREE long term deposits — 3,391 — 3,391
FEWE 5 BR K Trade receivables — 59,640 — 59,640
B AFER FIE - ¥4 Financial assets included in
NEMEUEER Z  prepayments, deposits and
TEEE other receivables — 36,743 — 36,743
JE Ui B & A RIBR X Amounts due from associates — 1,423 — 1,423
JEMR— R HIEEE Amount due from a jointly-
BR % (B 5E18) controlled entity (note 18) — 4,277 — 4,277
BAFERAEIZE Investments at fair value through
/& profit or loss 8,261 — — 8,261
ReEkREZLEMEIEE Cash and cash equivalents — 138,990 — 138,990
8,261 244,464 38,218 290,943
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40. RERE o z2&€@m T E(E) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

2012 Group
THBE Financial liabilities
178 85 R A
FTEZ
EA- =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
FET
HK$'000
ERNESRALENER Trade and bills payables 39,666
Pl BEMEMER R ETAME 2 Financial liabilities included in other payables
ERaE and accruals 23,260
MERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing 20,000
82,926

REE(BEBR)ERAT 2012 B F K&
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40. MEREB S 2E€RMITE(E) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

—E——F REE
201N Group
EREE Financial assets
BAFERA
Bakz
TEEE BH & Al E
— BEE=E JE W BR R EREE BEt
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit Available-for-
or loss — Loans and sale financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
FET FAET FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR ERE Available-for-sale investments — — 38,153 38,153
| ARBEE 248 Finandal assets included in long
BE term deposits — 1,556 — 1,556
FEUE SRR Trade receivables — 90,424 — 90,424

B BTEMFRIE - % Financial assets included in
N Efb BRI > prepayments, deposits and

TREE other receivables — 41,418 — 41,418
fE UL B 2 A RIBRFX Amounts due from associates — 1,453 — 1,453
JEM—HEFZEHIEE Amount due from a jointly-

BR 3 (MY 3E18) controlled entity (note 18) — 9,026 — 9,026
EAFERLAEIER Investments at fair value through

ZIEA profit or loss 8,450 — — 8,450
PTESMIA Derivative financial instruments 227 — — 227
HERMEEMEEE Cash and cash equivalents — 163,900 — 163,900

8,677 307,777 38,153 354,607
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40. REH B 2SR TAE)

(continued)

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

—ZT——%F ARE
2011 Group
=R Financial liabilities
% 58 PR AR
rEZ
TRBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
FAET
HK$'000
ERESEREEMNER Trade and bills payables 38,554
FImEMmENER R EFEEZ Financial liabilities included in other payables
cRAE and accruals 43,616
82,170
ARAF
Company
TRMEE Financial assets
BEREKEWRER
Loans and receivables
—E——fF —T——fF
2012 201
FExT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e UL B 8 A A BR X Due from subsidiaries 609,253 670,245
W ATERFIE - %4 K E Finandal assets included in prepayments,
thEWER R 2 € EE  deposits and other receivables 213 200
e MRE&EBEIER Cash and bank balances 203 199
609,669 670,644

EE(BER)BR2F

2012 A F ;| & 133



BRI (&)
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—ZT——%=A=+—H 31 March 2012

134

40. RER B z2€@m T E(EZ) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
VNN
Company
cRmas Financial liabilities
REBHERLITEZSHERE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
—E-—fF —E——%F
2012 2011
TET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FES B B A E BR 3R Due to subsidiaries
(B 5E17) (note 17) 198,667 197,465
M. PFERAFEER 41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

RotEiEzeREEREBARE - T
BEEAHEERERRATFELCARSR
RZBENAKREEIE BARREER
HETABNEHANDE - BRFETEE
A5 E  AIHHEERERKARE R
BEEBRAK-

AEBRBUATERRBUBELRTE
TR TANAFE:

F—E: RABREELRENEEDS
MHmECRERB) BTN
(]

F_E: MMHERWEEMNAFE-R
ZEERMAEEER A2 E
PDEERXRAZERARBENT
58z

MEERMEBEENAFE B
ZEERMAEEER A2
FAEERAIRBH TS BUR
(TAIRBEH A28

R
[
TE]
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The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities except
available-for-sale investments and investments at fair
value through profit or loss approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments. Available-for-sale investments are stated at
cost less impairment as their fair values cannot be reliably

measured.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)
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41.

42.

RFERXIFEER(E) 4.

R-E——F=Zf=+—H AEEEEF
BAFEAEZERTANT:

RZE——F=ZA=+—HURAFEH=
ZEE:

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
(continued)

As at 31 March 2012, the Group held the following
financial instruments measured at fair value:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2012:

E—E £-E H=g et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FEx FET FET FEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAFERZA Investments at fair value
Baioi®E through profit or loss 8,261 — — 8,261

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—BILtEE F
—BRE_EBZHEITEQAFEFEEE
MEAFTEFAEEASLBEHE=E -

MERREEEERERXK 42.

AEBETECRHIABRERE BURES
BR R H At EUR R BRE MR EIFR
gENE R - HRAZEHERES  BHE
FEARENRER - R EMRK RS

RITIEE -

FEBeRIAEENETERRAEE
Rk mEBE SRR RINER c EEE
B RAZEEIEUERRABE - Bt
T

During the year ended 31 March 2012, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
comprise investments, trade and other receivables, cash
and short term deposits, long term deposits, balances
with associates and a jointly-controlled entity, trade and
bills payables, other payables and interest-bearing bank
borrowing.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign
currency risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

EE(BR)EBERAT 2012 @ F3H &
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FERER

AEBZEERBETERBEERESE
R AEBRAREELERBRALE(EE
REDEB2ERP - RZE—ZF=H=
T AR AAREBEFEHEEKRESIEREE
BiBA0% (ZF——F : HiB50%) ° &
RS REIRERINER  EEAE
BIREXEENEREETZE - BBE
ﬁﬂhﬂ ﬁ $%. EFE%&*
HAE BEETEERSE FEEHE
HEMESIER o ATER BREUER # 18 5 UK
B EAER - Wi AEEe THENE
EEBEKESER ZARE SR - A
REEAAIRE S EIEL R REBE -
RUME  ASEEERARLAEEEE
RBREZEEET RNERE -

EREE

HARASEEERAICEEBREZE =7
HTEE T EEREHRIEFES -

AEEHEtbEREEERERERAESSE
EIRE AR ERE - R HRES
BEEREEQRRR Eﬁiﬁﬁkﬁﬁ
RZBERETETR)ZEERREK
BHEOSTRE  MEARZ&ZS ERAZERN
HETHZE®E -

RAREMEYREBRKESRKZEE
R\ - H BRI RRM E23RE -

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The Group has been largely dependent on a
small number of customers for a substantial portion of
its business. The top five customers represent over 40%
(2011: over 50%) of the amount of trade receivables
as at 31 March 2012. The failure of these customers
to make the required payments could have a negative
impact on the Group’s operating results. In order to
minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for the determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group regularly
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is properly managed
and significantly reduced.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale
investments, amounts due from a jointly-controlled entity
and associates, investments at fair value through profit or
loss and certain derivative instruments, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.
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42.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial

assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowing and banking facilities. The Group's bank
borrowing would mature in less than one year as at 31
March 2012 based on the carrying value of borrowing
reflected in the financial statements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Group
—E—_—F
2012
=@EAE
DR PR —FE
EER =@A +=f@A "EF et

3 to
On Less than less than 1 to
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years Total

TExT TRERT TERX TFTERT THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B 4R7THEE  Interest-bearing bank borrowing — 20,000 — — 20,000
JENE SR Kk Trade and

AN bills payables 13,087 25,798 723 58 39,666
HihfEBRZ  Other payables 23,260 — — — 23,260
BB BE R T A Guarantees given to banks in

HHERER  connection with facilities

BRH%EMmM4 T  granted to available-for-sale

WITZHER investments 7,755 — — — 7,755

44,102 45,798 723 58 90,681

EE(BR)EBERAT 2012 @ F3H &
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2. BREMEEEEREEK 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(& OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
nBELRERR(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
KEE(E Group (continued)
—E——%
2011
=@A=

SR SR —FE
EEX =@A +-@A A% @

3 to
On Less than less than 1to5
demand 3 months 12 months years Total

TAExT TExT TAET TETL TART
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B E S & Trade and

& 1 bills payables 19,352 19,064 57 81 38,554
HihfEBRZ  Other payables 43,616 — — — 43,616
62,968 19,064 57 81 82,170
RBEHR U ARMEZREAE The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities
A DNFCRMEBEZEXBPHRINT as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
K a] Company
—_E—_fF
2012
EZER BiE—F #Et
On demand Over 1 year Total
FET FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
J& -t BT /&8 2 A1 AR 5% Due to subsidiaries — 198,667 198,667
A RER THE Guarantees given to banks in
NRIMMEREEM  connection with facilities
HBTFIRITZEMR  granted to subsidiaries 20,000 — 20,000
20,000 198,667 218,667
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42. BHEREZEEREREE

(#&)

RBESRERE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

KREF(E) Company (continued)
—E——%
20M
i — it
Over 1 year Total
FAET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
JRE{<F BT BB 2 R BR 3K Due to subsidiaries 197,465 197,465

SIS L B

AEESPRZX5EEER - ZFRABRIKE
EEBNNHEABRE(BUNINEES
B 5N o REE A 8B 10 FE UCE 5 B SN
NESERRAINE A -

ATEREBTEEMBERERTEOBNR
T AREMBEEXZEEAIEES
HHRERRBAKEBAEE < GE (F
ERMEENABZATFEESMB) -

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Certain trade receivables and payables of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Renminbi and Japanese Yen exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss
before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities).

EE(BR)EBERAT 2012 @ F3H &
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2. BEERREEEEREE 42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
MR B (4B) Foreign currency risk (continued)
@,/
b2 BAaF, CRd) s
Btk (BE)Z2E2H in equity*
Change in Increase/
Change in profit/(loss)  (decrease) in
rate before tax equity*
=2l TBT TBT
% HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_F 2012
EBTHANTER If Hong Kong dollar
fE XAy (H : weakens against:
AR Renminbi 5 1,110 —
H Japanese Yen 2,614 —
EBATHATEK If Hong Kong dollar
b & F 15 strengthens against:
AR Renminbi 5 (1,110) —
H Japanese Yen (2,614) —
—T——% 2011
EBTHIATEE If Hong Kong dollar
lEEE7E: weakens against:
AR Renminbi 5 593 —
H Japanese Yen 8 3,928 —
AEBTHUATEE If Hong Kong dollar
fE & F 1A strengthens against:
AR Renminbi 5 (593) —
H Japanese Yen 8 (3,928) —

* TEERFER

Group Sense (International) Limited ~ Annual Report 2012
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which
is current assets divided by current liabilities. The Group's
policy is to maintain the current ratio over one. The
current ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were
as follows:

rEE Group
—E-=F —E——%F
2012 2011
FHExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEBEE Current assets 328,154 430,908
mEaE Current liabilities 112,406 136,403
eI Current ratio 2.92 3.16

EE (BB)ERAF
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43.

44,
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BEHRREREH

RFEHRE  AEER=ZZE—ZFHA
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group has
entered into the agreement with the non-controlling
interest of Guangdong ZDXT Software Technology
Company Limited (the “Purchaser”) to dispose 17%
equity interest of Guangdong ZDXT Software Technology
Company Limited (“ZDXT") at cash consideration of
RMB29.35 million (approximately HK$36 million) (the
“Disposal”) on 24 April 2012. Due to the fact that
the Pre-sale Commercial Housing Permits or the House
Ownership Certificate in respect of property of ZDXT
might only be issued by end of 2013, such progress does
not match the development pace as originally planned
by the Purchaser in the agreement. The Group and the
Purchaser mutually agreed to terminate the Disposal by
entering the termination agreement on 4 June 2012.
Further particulars of the Disposal and the termination of
the Disposal are set out in the Company’s announcements
published on 24 April 2012 and 4 June 2012.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2012.
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Financial Summary

AETIFERECERFEHRR ZHEP—E  This summary does not form part of the audited financial

o statements.
g
= RESULTS
BE=A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31st March,
ZEENF ZZThEFE ZE-TF ZT——F —E-=-F
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
F#ET FE&TT FHET F#ET FTExT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Revenue 940,732 752,605 663,261 622,855 478,708
BAIEE Loss before tax (16,579) (64,468) (21,990) (31,485) (76,872)
e Income tax 1,684 (279) (12,942) (292) (46)
AEEEE Loss for the year (14,895) (64,747) (34,932) (31,777) (76,918)
FEf5 % F)(B18) - Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
AAEIREREA Equity holders of the Company (15,250) (64,673) (34,256) (31,807) (73,182)
FE 45 4 2 Non-controlling interests 355 (74) (676) 30 (3,736)
KEEEB Loss for the year (14,895) (64,747) (34,932) (31,777) (76,918)
EEHAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=ZA=+-—H
As at 31st March,
—EREN\F —TEANF —ET-TF —_2——F ZE--F
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
FHET FHET FET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBE Total assets 775,755 687,000 670,086 610,111 523,959
BEBE Total liabilities (190,282) (158,414) (175,489) (136,403) (112,406)
585,473 528,586 494,597 473,708 411,553
RARIREREA Equity attributable to equity
FEAG A 1 holders of the Company 583,617 524,458 491,142 469,967 407,403
IF 122 i) 4 a5 Non-controlling interests 1,856 4,128 3,455 3,741 4,150
585,473 528,586 494,597 473,708 411,553
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TEMEZFS
Particulars of Major Properties

!

REBR-_ZE——F=A=+—HBHEBEXEY Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31st

EZ2FHBEWT: March, 2012 are set out below:

2B LB Wl FH
Name/location Type Lease term
HEM:

Leasehold properties:

1. BENEERFESNR I% hF 5
EM TR P02
E13-245 T35 K%
Hb, JE8 P3 5% 1% B L
Workshop Nos. 13 to 24 on 2nd Floor Industrial Medium-term lease
and Car Parking Space No. P3
on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza
9 Kai Cheung Road
Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong

2. HHERZERZEZEETH I% 5
REmik&#E
EYERR
ENIXER
Dongguan Chang An Group Sense Industrial Medium-term lease
Electronics Factory
Fourth Industrial Zone, Wusha
Chang An, Dongguan
The People’s Republic of China
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Group Sense (International) Limited
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Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong.
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